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Business review

This nine-month period ended 31 December 2006 has been ene of the most significant in the history of BAA Limited (formerly BAA plc) (‘the Company’).
At the time of publishing cur Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2008, a consortium led by Grupo Ferrovial, S.A. ('the Ferrovial Consertium' had
made offers {‘the offers’) to acquire all of the capital issued and to be issued by the Company and all the bonds that were convertible into shares of the
Company.

On 26 June 2008, Airport Development and Investment Limited {'ADIL’), a company formed by the Ferrovial Consortium 1o acquire the Company and its
subsidiaries {‘the Group"), announced that its offers had become unconditional. On satisfying the conditions of the offers, ADIL, under the London Stock
Exchange {'LSE") listing rules, and subject to certain other conditions, compuisorily acquired the remaining shares and convertible bonds of the Company.

On 10 July 2006, ADIL announced via the LSE Regulatory Informalion System that, it and the Company had commenced the proceedings necessary to
delist the Company's shares and convertible bonds in accordance with the applicable regulations. On 11 July 2008, an announcement in this respect was
published in the UK edition of the Financial Times, from which date there was a delisting period of 20 business days. Detisting was official on 15 August
2006 and the Company changed its status from a plc to a private {Limited} company.

The ultimate parent company of ADIL in the UK is FGP Tepco Ltd, a company owned by Ferrovial Infraestructuras, S.A. (62%), Caisse de dépdt et
placement du Québec (28%) and Baker Street Investment Ple Ltd (10%).

Subsequent to acquisition by ADIL, a substantial number of the incumbent directors resigned from the Board of Directors (‘the Board'). As such, the
Company's Board has a significantly new composition at 31 December 2006. Despite the changes that have laken place during the nine-month period,
the Group has adopted a ‘business-as-usual’ approach and we believe our underlying operations have been largely unaffected by the change in
ownership.

In other significant initiatives, the Group changed its reporting date to 31 December {previously 31 March) to align with Grupo Ferrovial, S.A. (the ultimate
majority shareholder). As such, the financial information presented in this business review and the following financial report is for the nine months ended
31 December 2006 and for the balance sheet at that date.

The Group's financial performance for the nine months ended 31 December 2006 has been presented against both the year ended 31 March 2006 and
the comparative prior year nine-manth period ended 31 December 2005. The period to period change percentages are calculated on the comparative
nine month period due to seasonality associated with the underlying business. The figures stated for the nine month ended 31 December 2005 (or as at
that date) are unaudited.

During the year the Group changed its accounting treatment for joint venture entities to proportionately consalidate the financial performance for the
reporting period and the financial position at 31 December 2006 (previously joint venture entities were equity accounted). The effect of this change in
policy is that the Company's share of each of the joint venture entities’ assets, liabilities, income and expenses are combined on a line-by-line basis with
similar items in the rest of the Group, rather than a single-line entry 1o recognise the Company’s share of profits and investments in joint venture entities.
This change in policy has no impact on net profit or reserves. Prior period comparatives have been restated to reflect this change in policy. The impact of
restatement on prior year comparatives is set out in the Group’s accounting policies disclosures under the ‘investment in joint ventures’ section. The BAA
Limited entity accounts (reported under UK GAAP) continues to use the equity method to account for ifs inferests in joint vénture entities.

The Company emered into a Memoranrdum of Understanding ('Mol'} during October 2006 with the Hochitief Consortium to purchase Budapest Airport Zit,
BAA's subsidiary company which owns Budapest Airport. BAA considers that the transaction satisfies the requirements of IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’. As a conseguence, assets and liabilities of Budapesl Airport have been reclassified as heldfor-sale. No
significant profit or loss is expected fo be reatised.

This business review is presented under two sections:

Financial performance — where we aim to explain the key drivers behind the underlying financial performance reported for the nine months ended 31
December 2006 and provide an analysis of the financial position of the Group as at that date. The Group’s accounting and reporting policies and
procedures are akso considered, as well as the key drivers of the Group’s ongoing financial performance, including the outlook for 2007,

Risk management - where we outline the Group's approach 1o risk management, sources of assurance and highlight the key business risks identified by
the Group Executive Commitiee.

Some of the significant events and programmes that are highlighted in the operating review have particular impacts on the way in which the financial
results have been presented. The main areas of impact were:

Exceptional items relating to:

- reprganisation costs

- Heathrow Terminal 5 operational readiness

- bid advisory costs

- staff related costs due to change in ownership

- Heathrow Terminai 2 accelerated depreciation

- profit on sale of Budapest Airport’s ground handling operations

- profit on the sale of Heathrow land

The reporting of fair value gains and losses arising from the valuation of investment property and derivative financial instruments as ‘certain re-
measurements’.

These areas of impact are included in our statutory results. However, to make it easier for users of these financial statements to understand the
sustainable performance of the business, the following commentary, in respect of revenue, operating costs and operating profit, is based on the
underlying performance of the Group after adjusting for these items,

The results of Budapest Airport have also been excluded from the underlying performance as it was not held for the entire period in the year ended 31
March 2006.

Joint-venture entities have been excluded as they were not proportionately consalidated for the nine months ended 31 December 2005.




Financial performance

Summary of underlying performance

9 months to 12 months to 9 months to Change’
31 December 2006 31 March 2006 31 December 2005 %
Revenue (£ million) 1,833 2,232 1,723 6.4
Operating profit (£ million} 577 710 574 0.5
Passenger traffic® (million) 120.5 1492 117.0 3.0
Summary statutory results for the year
9 months to 12 months to @ months to Change’
31 December 2006 31 March 2006° 31 December 2005° %
Revenue {£ million) 2,012 2,313
Operating profit (£ million) 702 926
Profit before tax (mitlion) 597 757
UK airports’ net retait income* (£ milfion} 433 616 478 21
UK airports’ net retail income per passenger® £4.21 £4.28 £4.24 (0.7)
Cash generated from operations (£ million} 598 986
Capital expenditure®(£ million) 1,106 1,485
Net debt (£ million}) 6,299 5,557

"Based on the percentage change for the nine months ended 31 December 2006 against the comparative period ended 31 December 2005 (unaudited).

2F|gures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudiled and are based on the Group's management accounts. Statutory results were not
calculated or pubtished for the nine months ended 31 December 2005, however comparative figures have been calculated for certain items.
SExcludes Budapest Aimpor!’s 6.7 million passengers for the nine months ended 31 December 2006 and 1.6 million for the three months post-acquisition
in the year ended 31 March 2006.

“Defined as revenues received directy from third-party retail aperators, concession fees paid to UK airports by World Duty Free {"WDF") and WDF’s
operatmg profit.
Defined as net retall income divided by the number of UK passengers {excluding helicopter passengers).

®Capital expenditure excludes capitalised interest.

"Statutory revenue, operating profit and profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2006 have been restated for the change in policy to propoertionately
consolidate joint venture entities.

Statutory results
The statutory operating profit for the current and prior year includes the impact of the following items:

£100 million net exceptional costs before certain re-measurements {31 March 2006: £39 million} including:
- £22 million (31 March 2006: £61 million) reorganisation costs
- £11 million {31 March 2006: £4 million) Terminal 5 operational readiness costs
- £45 mitlion (31 March 20086: £15 million) bid advisory costs
- £17 million {31 March 20086: £nil) staff related costs due to change in ownership
- £17 million (31 March 2008: £nil) accelerated depreciation on Heathrow Terminal 2
- £(10) miliion {31 March 2006: £nil) profit on sale of Budapest Airport’s ground handling operations
£(2) million (31 March 2006: £(41) million} profit on sale of Heathrow land
£185 miltion {31 March 2006: £229 million) operating profit refated to ‘certain re-measurements’ (including those of joint ventures and associates)
reflecting the fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations and disposals and the fair value gains and losses arising on the re-
measurement and disposat of derivative financial instruments (together with the associated fair value gains and josses on any underlying hedged items
that are part of a fair value hedging relationship).

The directors consider that reporting revenue and operating profit before the items listed above more accurately reflects the underlying performance of
BAA's husiness. As such, underlying revenue and operating profil have been determined by adjusting for these items {in addition to Budapest Airport and
joint venture entities), as summarised below;




Reconciliation of statutory results to underlying operating profit performance

8 months to 12 months to 9 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006 31 December 20057 Change'
£m £m £m %
Revenue
Statutory (a} 2,012 2,313
Budapest Alrport adjustment® {151) (43)
Joint venture entities proportionate consolidation (28) (38)
Underlying revenue (d) 1,833 2,232 1,723 6.4
Operating costs
Statutory (b) 1,495 1,616
Net exceptional costs {100} (39
Budapest Airporl adjustment? (127} (43)
Joint venture entities propoertionate consolidation (12) {12)
Underlying operating costs (e} 1,256 1,522 1,149 9.3
Other operating income
Statutory (c) 185 229
Certain re-tneasurements (185) (229)
Underlying other operating income {f} - - - -
Operating profit
Statutory (a - b+ €) 702 926
Underlying operating profit (d — e + 1) 577 710 574 0.5

T Based on the percentage change for the nine months ended 31 December 2006 against the comparative pericd ended 31 December 2005 (Unaudited).
Certain statutory percentage changes have not been calculated as the statutory resulls for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 were not
calculated or published.

2 Underlying figures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudited and are based on the Group's management accounts. Statutory results
were not calgulated or published for the nine months ended 31 December 2005,

* Budapest Airport's results were excluded from the underlying resulls for the year ended 31 March 2006 as the business was only owned by BAA for
three months of that year. The results have alse been excluded from the nine-months ended 31 December 2006 to provide underlying results,

The commentary below, in respect of revenue, operating costs and operating profit, is based on the underlying performance of the Group. The
perfoimance of Budapest Airport, which was acquired in December 2005 and reported as an adjustment to statutory revenue and operating costs to
amive at underlying financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2006, has been treated similarly in the current reporting period. Budapest Airport
is inciuded in the ‘Other airporis’ segment, In addition, joini-venture entities have been excluded as they were not propottionatety consclidated for the nine
months ended 31 December 2005. The commentary on all other aspects of the Group's results is based on the statutory financial information.

Underlying performance

Revenhue

Underlying revenue for the nine-month period was £1,833 miliion (31 March 2006: £2,232 million} and £1,723 million for the nine months ended 31
December 2005. A statutory to underlying performance reconciliation for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 is not able to be provided as it was
not a staiutery reporting period and information in this form was not published. The underiying performance for the nine months ended 31 December 2006
reflects a 3.0% increase in lerminal passengers, a 4.1% rise in average aeronautical charges per passenger and a 0.7% decrease in UK airports’ net
retail income per passenger compared to the nine menths ended 31 December 2005. These items are shown in separate sections within this financial
performance section.




Passenger traffic growth
Passenger traffic is a key driver of revenue for an airport business.

Traffic summary — BAA airports (excluding Budapest) (million)

9 months to 12 months to 9 months to Change'

31 December 2006 31 March 2006 31 December 20052 %
Total
Aifr transport movements (000's) 1,028.2 1,319.2 1,010.5 1.8
Terminal passengers 120.5 1492 117.0 3.0
Passengers by location
Heathrow 52.0 67.4 521 (0.2)
Gatwick 274 328 26.2 48
Stansted 18.8 222 17.4 8.3
Glasgow 7.2 8.8 7.2 0.1
Edinburgh 6.8 8.5 6.7 1.7
Aberdegn 2.5 3.0 23 10.4
Southampton 1.5 19 1.5 35
Total UK passengers 116.2 144.6 1134 25
Naples 4.3 46 36 19.0
Total 120.5 149.2 117.0 3.0

T These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the nine months ended 31 December 2006
against the comparative period ended 31 December 2005 {unaudited).
2 Figures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudited and are based on the Group’s management accounts.

UK passenger traffic for the nine months ended December 2006 was 2.5% higher than the comparative nine month period ended 31 December 2005.
Heathrow Airport's passenger iraffic decreased 0.2% for the comparative period as it was impacted by the tightening of security measures after 10 August
{particularly the North Atlantic long-haul flights) and the heavy fog that descended on London in the week leading up to Christmas. These events affected
Heathrow to a greater extent than the other London airports.

The growth in passenger trafiic was assisted by the continued expansion in European scheduled services (particularly out of Stansted and Gatwick) and
other long-haul operations (predominantly India and China).

Charter traffic continued its declining trend during the period.

Aeronautical charges

Aercnautical charges income (excluding Budapest) was £760 million for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2006 (31 March 2006: £898 million)
and £710 million for the nine months ended 31 December 2005. Growth has been driven by tariff increases at the price-regulated London airports and
supported by increased passenger traffic. The average aeronautical charge per passenger rose to £6.31 against the £6.03 for the vear ended 31
December 2006 and £6.06 for the nine months ended 31 December 2005.

Aeronautical charges summary (by airport)

Aeronautical charges Per passenger
9 months to 9 months to
31 December 12monthsto 31 December 31 December 31 March 31 December

2006 31 March 2006 2005° Change' 2006 2008" 2005"* Change'

£m £m £m % £ £ £ %

Heathrow 451 532 415 87 8.67 7.89 7.96 8.9
Gatwick 133 153 125 8.4 4.84 467 4.76 1.6
Stansted 64 72 58 10.4 3.40 3.26 3.34 1.9
Glasgow 36 45 37 {(1.09 5.04 508 5.10 (1.2}
Edinburgh 36 47 36 0.2 537 5.50 545 (1.5)
Aberdeen 16 19 15 10.7 6.54 6.56 6.53 0.2
Southampton 10 13 10 {2.2) 6.33 7.02 6.70 (5.4}
Total UK airports 746 881 696 7.2 6.42 6.10 6.14 48
Naples 14 17 14 1.6 3.36 3.73 3.74 (10.1}
Total airports 760 898 710 70 6.31 6.03 6.06 4.1

T These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the parcentage change for the nine months ended 31 December 2006
against the comparative period ended 31 December 2005 (unaudited).
2 Figures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudited and are based on the Group's management accounts.

The London airperts {Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted) are subject to economic regulation. The regulator of the three London airports, the Civil Aviation
Authority (‘CAA’), has several statutory dufies, one of which is fo encourage investment in new facilities at these three airports in line with the interests of
users of the airports (airlines and passengers). In setting the cap on aercnautical pricing, the regulator, in effect, sets a targeted return on investment at
these airports. The targeted rate of return in the current regulatory price contro) period (2003/04 to 2007/08) is 7.75% {pre-tax real) with increases in
aeronautical pricing capped at RPI +6.5% a year at Heathrow Airport and at RPI +0% at Gatwick and Stansted airports.

Alrlines operating at Heathrow and Gatwick airports have been charged at the regulatory price cap and this has driven income growth in aeronautical
charges.




Retail income
UK airports’ net retail income for the nine months ended 31 December 2006 was £488 million {31 March 2006: £616 million} and £478 million for the nine
months ended 31 December 2005, Net retail income per UK passenger fell 0.7% to £4.21 against £4.24 for the comparative nine month period.

Analysis of net retail income

9 months to 12 manths to 9 months 10
31 December 2006 31 March 2006 31 December 2005 Change'
£m £m £m %

UK
World Duty Free (‘WWDF’) 124 152 122 1.2
Airside specialist shops 52 66 50 33
Landside shops and bookshops 38 49 39 2.8
Catering 45 55 42 6.7
Bureaux de change 42 53 38 10.6
Car parking 121 167 122 {1.1)
Car rental 17 20 15 7.5
Adverlising {media sales) 26 35 27 {1.8)
Other retail 23 29 23 4.0
Total UK 488 616 478 2.1
Naples 7 g 7 11.8
Per passenger (£}
UK 421 4.28 424 (0.7)
Naples 1.72 1.83 1.74 {1.1)

T These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the nine months ended 31 December 2006
against the comparative period ended 31 Becember 2005 (unaudited).
2 Figures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudited and are based on the Group’s management accounts,

Reconciliation of UK airports’ net retail income and net retail income per passenger

9 months to 12 months to 9 months to
31 December 2006 31March2006 31 December 20057 Change'
£m £m £m %
UK airports’ retail revenue 385 477 362 6.4
World Duty Free revenue 310 385 304 1.8
Less cost of sales {207) {248) (188) 10.1
Net retail income 488 816 478 21
UK fixed wing passengers (million) 115.9 144.2 112.9 26
Net retail income per passenger £4.21 £4.28 £4.24 {0.7)

' These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the nine months ended 31 December
20086 against the comparative period anded 31 December 2605 (unaudited).
2 Figures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudited and are based on the Group's management accounts,

Despite a period of increased security measures and tightened confrols on hand-luggage, the UK airports retail operations produced sound results during
the period, which reflects management’s continuing efforis to:

Provide adequate staffing levels at peak passenger times

Congcentrate on the on-going management of targeted brands

improve store layouts

Improve service levels for passengers.

Net retail income has been assisted by strong passenger traffic numbers, a key driver of performance in this area of the business, but it should be noted
that net retail income per passenger fefl during the period.




Operating costs
The Group's underlying operating costs for the nine months ended 31 December 2008 were £1,256 million {31 March 2006: £1,522 million) and £1,149
million for the nine months ended 31 December 2005.

Underlying group operating costs

9 months to 12 months to 9 months to

31 December 2006 31 March 2006 31 December 20057 Change'

£m £m £m %

Staff costs 429 535 394 8.8
Contract and agency costs . 3 34 25 26.6
Rent and rates 3| 110 86 6.5
Utilities 85 100 73 16.5
Maintenance 116 155 113 2.7
Retail cost of goods soldfother 166 189 147 13.0
Depreciation 233 292 217 7.2
Other costs 170 198 150 13.7
Capitalised costs {65) (o) (56) 15.1
Group operating costs 1,256 1,522 1,149 9.3

T These numbers have been caiculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the nine months ended 31 December 2006
against the comparative period ended 31 December 2005 (unaudited),
2 Figures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudited and are based on the Group's management accounts.

The factors set out below impacted the Group's underiying operating costs:

Staff costs increased 8.8% as a result of annual salary increases and higher pension charges

Additional contract and agency costs were incurred as a result of the tightening of security measures and the travel disruption caused by the London fog
prior fo Christmas _

Occupancy (rent and rates) and related costs (utilities) increased reflecting the full period charge of price increases and significant new facilities that came
into setvice in the prior period

The higher depreciation tharge reflects the increase in the depreciable cost of property, plant and eguipment through our capital investment prograrme.

Operating profit
Underlying operating profit was £577 million (31 March 2006: £710 million} and £574 million for the nine manths ended 31 December 2005 (representing
an increase of 0.5%.

Performance by segment
On a segmental basis, underlying revenue and operating profit performance:

Segmental analysis

9 months to 12 months to 9 menths to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006 31 December 20057 Change'
Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenue profit Revenue nrofit Revenue profit Revenue profit
£m £m £m £m £m £m % %
Price-regulated
London airports 1,295 470 1,570 506 1,208 473 7.3 (0.4}
Heathrow® 869 330 1,077 447 820 345 6.0 4.2)
Gatwick 285 98 328 100 257 88 10.7 11.4
Stansted 141 42 167 49 131 a0 7.6 5.8
Scottish airports 151 64 185 69 142 58 6.1 10.6
Glasgow 62 26 77 27 60 24 28 9.1
Edinburgh 61 27 75 3 57 25 6.7 88
Aberdeen 28 11 33 11 25 9 12.7 19.2
QOther airports 44 12 52 16 41 13 94 (12.4)
Southampton 18 6 21 9 16 7 1.9 (16.4)
Naples 28 6 3 6 25 6 14.2 (7.4)
World Duty Free 310 21 385 26 304 20 18 5.3
Other operations® 33 10 40 4 28 10 17.9 -
Total 1,833 577 2,232 710 1,723 574 6.4 0.5

T These nutnbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the nine menths ended 31 December 2006
against the comparative period ended 31 December 2005 (unaudited).

2 Figures for the nine months ended 31 December 2005 are unaudited and are based on the Group's management accounts.

% Heathrow Express and Heathrow Connect rail services are included within the Heathrow Airport segment. The rail contribution to Heathrow's revenue
and vperating profit for the nine month period was £58 mifiion (31 March 2008: £74 milfion / 31 December 2005: £56 million) and £14 miilion (31 March
20086: £16 million / 31 December 2005; £12 million} respeciively.

* ‘Other operations’ include BAA Lynton, fees from the Group's international retail and airport management confracts and other commercial operations.




Exceptional items

Exceptional items are based on statutory results rather than underlying results.

Reorganisation costs

Costs associated with change programmes of £22 million were incurred in the nine-month period {31 March 2006: £61 million). The major costs of
implementing this UK-wide programme in this period were redundancy payments and related pension costs, along with expenditure to design and
implement changed organisation structures and business processes.

The pragramme is designed to drive improvement in customer service and operational efficiency by bringing decision-making closer to the customer and
creating a leaner and more effective management structure, This is before the four-fold increase in securily requirements set by the Department for
Transport (‘DfT”) on 10 August and the resultant future potential impacts on our business models, which will remain under review.

Heathrow Terminal 5 {‘T5°} operational readiness costs

T5 operational readiness costs of £11 million (31 March 2006: £4 million} were incurred during the nine-month period. There will be further significant
exceptional spend relating to the T5 Eaunch in the lead up to it commencing operations in March 2008. These costs relate to Heathrow Airport (including
IT, retail and Heathrow Express) and World Duty Free.

Bid advisory costs
The advisory costs incurred in relation to the acquisition by ADIL were £45 million for the nine months to December 2008 (31 March 2008: £15 million).

Staff related costs due to change in ownership

The declaration that the final offers by ADIL were unconditional on 26 June 2006 was freated as a change in control for the purpeses of calculating the
expense of equity settled awards, previously granted. The effect of the change in control and the vesting of share awards resulted in a charge of £17
miliion, which included National Insurance costs, compensation for logs of office and pension costs.

Accelerated depreciation on Heathrow Terminal 2

With the anticipated development of Heathrow East (refer ‘Transforming Heathrow below), Terminal 2 at Heathrow Airport will be demolished.
Depreciation on this asset has been accelerated amounting to an additional depreciation charge of £17 million in the nine months to 31 December 2006
(31 March 2006: £nil} to reflect its shortened useful life.

Profit on sale of Budapest Airport’s ground handling operations
The sale of the ground handling cperations of Budapest Airport realised a profit of £10 million.

Profit on sale of Heathrow fand
On 21 March 2006, the sale of land to allow the development of a hotel adjacent to Terminal & at Heathrow Airport was completed. An exceptional profit
of £41 million was recognised in the year ended 31 March 2006. A further £2 million has been recognised in the current period.

Certain re-measurements

investment property valuation

The investment property valuation at 31 December 2006 resulted in a gain of £206 million {refer note 9 to the financial statements). This reflects £164
million related to Group properties and £42 million in respect of the Group’s share of the gain on revaluation of the Airport Property Partnership ('APP')
investment property portfelio. This compares to the gain of £225 million in the prior period.

Derivatives

Financial derivatives have given rise to a net fair value gain of £7 million compared with a loss of £49 million in the year ended 31 March 2006. This gain
is largely in respect of £1,050 million forward starting interest rate swaps held at 31 December 2006. The gain is a consequence of the rise in long-tem
interest rates between 1 April 2006 and 31 December 20086 from 4.73% to 5.54%.

Share of profit of associates {net of interest and tax and after certain re-measurements)
The Group’s share of operating profit {(after interest and tax and cerlain re-measurements) of its associates was £5 million (31 March 2006: £6 million).

Net finance costs

The Group’s net finance costs before certain re-measurements were £138 million (31 March 2006: £122 million), after capitalised interest of £137 million
(31 March 2006: £151 million). Capitalised interest reflects the Group’s ongoing capital investment programme and related assets under construction,
particularly Heathrow T5.

Taxation

Before certain re-measurements, the tax charge for the penicd was £76 million {31 March 2006: £174 million) and represents an effective tax rate of 20%.
This is less than that implied by the UK statutory rate of 30% due to the release of corporation tax provisions and the recognition of capital losses in
respect of previous years.

As well as the tax charge associated with profits before certain re-measurements, an additional tax charge of £57 million (31 March 2006: £51 million) has
been recognised within certain re-measurements. This comprises a current lax credit of £7 miilion and a deferred tax charge of £8 million arising from the
net gains on derivative financial instruments and a deferred tax charge of £56 million arising from gains on investment properties.

Dividend

A second interim dividend, which was proposed for the year ended 31 March 2006, of £165 million was paid during the nine manth period ended 31
December 2006. Further, an interim dividend of £78 million was paid to ADIL, the immediate parent entity, out of post-acquisition profits on 10 November
2006.




Cash flow

Cash generated from operations was £771 million (31 March 2006: £986 million).

Summary cash flow

9 months to 12 months to

31 December 2006 31 March 2008

£m £m

Cash generated from operations 7 986
Interest, tax and dividends received {213) (295}
Net cash flow from operations 558 691
Capital expenditure {1,106) (1,485)
Issue of ordinary share capitat 102 21
Dividends paid (243) (231}
Proceeds from sale of assets 78 74
Loan to parent company (114) -
Purchase of Budapest Airport - (1,281)
Other {17) 65)
Movement in nat debt {742} (2,276)

Balance sheet
Al 31 December 2008, the Group had net assets of £6,349 million (31 March 2006: £5,992 million) and gearing (net debt over net assets) had increased
to 99% from 93%.

Balance sheet position

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2008
Total assets 15,463
Net assets (before pension deficit} S o 6,146
Penmondeﬂcnt b N (154) ..
Netassets T 5902
Grossdebt '

Cash and short-{erm investments

" Net debt ' 6,209 5,557
Undrawn committed faciiities 2,050 1,000
Net debt/net assets (gearing) ) ) ] B 99% 93%

Capital investment programme
Group capital expenditure, excluding capitalised interest, and reflected in the balance sheel was £1,106 million in the nine months ended 31 December
2006 (31 March 2008: £1,485 million).

Transforming Heathrow
BAA is developing and implementing investment plans to transform the operations and passenger experience at Heathrow over the coming years, with T5
and ‘Heathrow East' being the most significant projects.

T5 phase 1, which incorporaies the main terminal building and Satellite 1, was approximaltely 90% complete as at 31 December 2008. The project
continues to make good progress and the development remains on budget and on schedule to open in March 2008, with phase 2 (Satellite 2} due to be
completed by 2011/12.

Key areas of progress on T5 during the period included:

The installation of state of the art driverless trains to operate onr T5's tracked transit system; a light rait system to provide an essential underground link
between the various terminal buildings which make up the T5 campus.

After a 20-month closure, the Piccadilly Line station at Terminal 4 reopened on 17 September 2006, exactly on schedule.

Heathrow Airport has also submitted an outline planning application for a new passenger terminal, ‘Heathrow East’, to the London Borough of Hillingdon.
The plans for Heathrow East (which are subject of course to obfaining pfanning consent and an acceptable regulatory proposal from the CAA) set out the
demolition of Terminal 2 and the Queen's Building in the central area of the airport. On the same site, a single replacement terminal would be constructed
to significantly improve the quality of service offered at Heathrow Alrport. Termina! 1 would be closed as a passenger-processing facility once Heathrow
East has become operational. The terminal would not increase the capacity of the airport but would replace outdated buildings. Significant exceptional
costs would be incurred in relation to this project, including accelerated depreciation on Terminal 2 (of which £17 million has been charged in the nine
months ended 31 December 2008).




Financing

Gross del at 31 December 2006 was £6,392 million {31 March 2008: £6,463 million). At 31 December 2008, net debt had increased to £6,299 million (31
March 2006: £5,557 million). The Group had outstanding interest rate swaps of £1.05 billion, cross-currency swaps totalling £1.7 billion (in respect of €1
billion 2012, €750 miliion 2014 and €750 million 2018 bonds} as well as a £200 million fixed-to-floating interest rate swap maturing in 2012. The mark to
market valuation of these derivatives at 31 December 2006 implied a liabilily of £45 million (compared to a £43 million liability on derivatives outstanding
at 31 March 2006).

Below is a table summarising movements in gross debt in the year:

Movement in gross debt

£m
Gross debt at 1 April 2006 6,463
 Repayments of committed facilities (22)
Repaymont of dobt e e et sttt st oer w(125) .
Repayment of drawings under revolving credit facility o {50)
Increase in drawings under new revolving credit facility ' 200
o - R e e e e e ( ; 4)
Gross debt 31 December 2006 6,392

Pensions

At 31 December 2008, under Intemational Accounting Standards 19 - Employee Benefits, BAA had a deficit of assets over future liabilities of £233
million. This comprised £212 million in retation to the BAA Pension Scheme and £21 million relating to other retirement benefits. This compares with a
deficit of £154 million at 31 March 20086, comprising £130 million in relation to the BAA Pension Scheme and £24 million relating to other retirement
benefits.

The BAA Pension Scheme assets grew by £54 million to £2,120 million {31 March 2006; £2,066 million). The growth of the scheme’s liabilities of £136
million to £2,332 millior (31 March 2006; £2,196 million) was driven by an increase in the inflation rate used to assess the present value of future liabilities
from 2.9%pa to 3.1%pa, anticipated increase in pensionable salaries and adjustments to mortality assumptions reflecting longer life expectancy. The next
triennial actuarial valuation of the scheme is due in Seplember 2007.

Contingent liability

Holders of US$109 million of bonds of World Duty Free Americas, Inc. {now known as DFA Inc.), which was sold in October 2001, issued proceedings
against BAA plc (now BAA Limited), World Duty Free pic and the purchaser of DFA Inc. in May 2002 claiming the defendants had fraudulently conveyed
the assets of DFA Inc. The plaintiffs remaining claim is for US$32 million {£19.9 million) and punitive damages of the same amount. A trial in December
2003 found BAA plc and World Duly Free plc not liable to the bond holders on all counts, The WDFA bondholders appeal on two points of law was heard
in November 2004 and reheard in October 2005. The Court hearing the appeal found for the plaintiffs on both points of law and ordered the case to be
sent back to the Court of First Instance. BAA plc appealed to the Court of Appeal which is the supreme court for the State of Maryland and a hearing took
place in October 2006. The decision is still awaited. The Board remains confident of a successiul outcome.

On 22 December 2008 Wallis Ingatlan Zrt {('"Wailis), 2 MHungarian property company, issued proceedings in the Budapest Metropolitan Court against BA
Zrt {the holding company for Budapest Airport) claiming that an agreement had been concluded establishing a parinership between Wallis and BA Zr in
relation to real estate development at Budapest Aimort which BA Zrt by its actions had rendered impossible to perform. Wallis seek either a declaration
that they jointly own certain real estate st the airport or a ruling that they are entitled to compensation in the sum of ten billion HUF (£28.8 million) and
interest. The Company has been advised that the claim is without merit and it will be vigorously defended.

Cutlook for 2007

The key drivers of our business remain unchanged and are set out below. The forecast of passenger traffic for 2007 reflects sustainable growth for 2007
and beyond and is aligned with our capital investment prograrmmes. As witnessed in 2008, passenger traffic can be impacted by a variety of unforeseen
events which (to a significant extent) are not directly controllable by BAA, such as the tightened security measures and weather conditions.

Passenger traffic forecasts continue to be menitored closely fo ensure business planning remains focussed on consumer trends, economic and market
forces, compelition, airline developments and other factors. Passenger traffic forecasts are under constant review, and conditions affecting our business
are ever-changing and may change forecasts that are published periodically.

The sale of Budapest Airport to Hochtief Consortium is expected to be completed during 2007. No significant profit or loss is expected to be realised on
this sale.

The regulatory process
2007 is an important year in BAA’s regulatary process. [t is likely that the Company will be reviewed by the Compelition Commission {*CC'} in two parallel
reviews.

First, the prices at Heathrow and Gatwick will be reviewed. The CAA establishes the prices that the BAA can set from 1 April 2008, The process fo set
these prices is well underway, having begun in early 2005. The CAA has made its initial proposals for Heathrow and Gatwick. it has proposed RPI +4 to
RPl + 8 at Heathrow and RP) -2 to RP] +2 at Gatwick. The CAA has proposed that Stansted Airpori be deregulated and the Government will be
consuliing on this proposal in due course. BAA’s response to these proposals was published on 5 February 2007. BAA rejecied the CAA's proposals as
failing to incenfivise BAA to invest at the aimports. The next stage in the process sees a six month review by the CC before the CAA sels prices early in
2008.

Second, the structure of BAA will be reviewed. The Office of Fair Trading {'OFT') launched an investigation into the UK airports sector in 20086. In
December 2006, it reported that it suspected that the ownership by BAA of its airports, the system of economic regulation of airports, and capacity
constraints combine to prevent, restrict or distort competition. In that light, the OFT propeses to refer the supply of airport services by BAA within the UK
to the CC. BAA responded on 8 February 2007. BAA does not consider that the OFT has made a case that the break up of BAA is necessary. BAA does
agree with the OFT that regulation and capacity are areas that should be scrutinised by the CC. This review is expected to take up to two years to
complete.
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Accounting and reporting policies and procedures

This annual report complies with the European regutation to report consolidated financial statements in conformity with Internationat Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS’} from 1 April 2005 onwards. The consolidated results in the financial statements for the year end 31 December 2006 are presented on
an IFRS basis, along with the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2006. it should be noted that the BAA Limited entity accounts
continue to be stated under UK GAAP. BAA's accounting policies and areas of significant accounting judgements and estimates are detailed within the
financial statements. OFf note, during the period the accounting policy for the treatment of joint venture entities was changed to proportionately consolidate
BAA's share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of joint venture entities. The impact of this change is included within the accounting policies
section of the financial statements.

Drivers of future performance

The key influencers of the Group’s financial prospects are: the number of passengers, aeronautical charges (per passenger charges to the airlines), retail
income from commercial activities (eg car parks, shops, advertising efc), operating efficiency and effectiveness, and our capital investment plans,
Developments in the regulatory, legislative and planning environments may also impact both our day-to-day operations, for example our security services,
and our ability to physicaily grow and develop the business for the medium and longer-term, Many of these factors have been discussed above of
elsewhere in this document. The comments below focus on those areas considered io have the greatest material impact on the Group’s future financial
performance,

Aeronautical charges

Leondorn airports

In the UK, under the Airports Act, BAA's price-regulated London airports (Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted) are subject to economic regulation. The CAA
sets a price cap for airport charges at each airport for a five-year period (or ‘quinquennium'}. The charges within the price cap include the runway landing
charge, the aircraft parking charge and the departing passenger charge.

The price cap is set with reference to forecasts for traffic volumes, capital investment, operating costs and operating revenue as well as allowing BAA a
reasonable rate of return on its investments. The inclusion of retail and property income when calculating the overall price cap is referred to as the 'single
till'. Under this model of regulation the retail and property activities are used to subsidise aeronautical activities.

In February 2003, the CAA published its decision on the price caps that apply for the period 1 April 2003 until 31 March 2008 (guinguennium 4).

The current regulatory period expires on 31 March 2008 and the formal process for setfing the charges for quinquennium 5 (the period running 2008/09 to
2012/13) began in December 2005 when the CAA published for consultation its policy issues paper. This consuitation paper was designed to inform
airports, airlines and stakeholders of the CAA's statutory dulies and functions, the market and policy context relevant to the reviews, and its provisionai
assessment of the regulatory policies it might adopt in setting airport price controls.

In December 2006, the CAA published its initial proposals for Heathrow and Gatwick. BAA's response to this document was sent in February 2007, BAA
rejected CAA's proposals. The next stage in the process is the formal reference to the Competition Commission that is due in April 2007. The CAA has
proposed that Stansted Airport be de-regulated (and therefore not subjected to price caps) and the Govemment will be consulting upon this proposal in
due course.

Maximum allowable yield

2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08

out-tum out-turmn out-tum RPI plus RPI plus
Heathrow o  £6.48 £7.08 £7.82 +6.5% +6.5%
Gatwick £4.32 £4.44  £485  +00%  +00%
e e R

The pricing regime at Heathrow has been linked to five triggers related to the Terminal 5 project and at Gatwick to the completion of Pier 6. The first three
triggers at Heathrow were achieved in the year ended 31 March 2006. The remaining triggers were met in the nine months ended 31 December 20086.
The Gatwick trigger has been met.

Other airports
By contrast, othetr BAA airports are subject to either much lighter economic regulation or no economic regulation, and hence are free to set their charges
to airlines directly with customers (the airine users).

Capital investment programme

The capital investment programme is currently under review to take into account the ever-changing economic, social, regulatory and climatic environment
that the Group operates in. Capital investment programmes are based on long-term forecasts and require extensive planning and consultation with
various stakeholders and other affected parties.
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Risk management

Risk management in BAA facilitates the identification, evaluation and effective management of the threats to the achievement of BAA's purpose, vision,
objectives, goals and sirategies. The vision of risk management is to embed the awareness of risk at all levels of the organisation, in such a way that all
significant business decisions are risk-informed. Particular emphasis is given to safety and security, environmental, commercial, finangial, reputational
and legal risks with the framework ensuring that BAA's financial aspirations are not pursued at the expense of risk management, thus delivering a
halanced control of risk, using formal risk management processes.

A key element of the risk management process is BAA's risk-profiling methodology. This determines the threats to the achievement of business ohjectives
in terms of likelihood and consequence at both inherent and residual level, after taking account of mitigating and controliing actions. Details are
maintained in a hierarchy of risk registers used as the basis for regular review of risk management at Executive Committee and Board level. The risk
registers are also used to inform decisions relating to the procurement of insurance cover,

The BAA risk management process is also aimed at defining and impiementing clear accountabilities, processes and reperting formats that deliver
efficient and effective management assurance to the Board to ensure statutory compliance whilst supporting business units to successfully manage their
operalions and properly embed risk management within these operations. The operation of the process and the individua! registers are subject to review
by BAA's Business Assurance function, whose primary responsibility is o provide independent assurance to the Beoard that the confrols put in place by
management to mitigate risks are working effectively.

The principal corporate risks as identified by the Executive Committee are currently:

Safety and security risks

Safety and security risks are regarded as an important risk to manage throughout the Group. The Group mitigates this risk by adopting and enforcing
rigorous policies and procedures supported by professional training and by investment in leading-edge security technology. BAA works closely with
government agencies, police and the Ammed Forces to match security measures to a level commensurate with the current raised threat environment.

Assurance is provided through management reporting processes and a specialist compliance audit funciion, reporting directly to the Health, Safety,
Security and Environment Committee.

Regulatory environment, legal and reputational risks

CAA regulation

As noted above, the Group’s operations at Heathrow, Galwick and Stansted airporis are subject lo regufatory review by the CAA and Competition
Commission every five years. The risk of an adverse outcome from the five-yearly review is mitigated as far as possible by a dedicated project team
which ensures full compliance with formal regulatory requirements, establishes a sound relationship with the regulator and advises the Executive
Committee and Board on regulatory matters.

Part of the regulatory framework is BAA's involvement in constructive engagement with the airines. In order to manage the risk of adverse airline
relations, all airlines have been invited to participate at all stages and to be represented on all fora — eg joint steering groups. When feedback was sought
or processes measured, independent third pariies have been utilised for data gathering and analysis to ensure confidentiality and neutrality of
interpretation. In addition, key stakeholders are engaged on a joint planning basis which provides the airlines with the opportunity of airing views and
sharing plans, thereby ensuring their ongoing requirements are articulated and understood.

Competifion rules

The penatties for failing to comply with the 1998 Competition Act and relevant EU law are recognised as risks to manage within the Group, given its
position in certain markets. Clear pelicy direction, which ingludes compulsory awareness training and close support from the internal legal department,
has reduced the likelihood of the Greup breaching these regulations. Refer to the 'Outlook for 2007” section for details on the regulatory process and OFT
investigation on competition.

Capacity shortfall

Failure to secure necessary planning permissions would lead to the Group having insufficient capacity to meet the expected demands of the industry
resulling in increased congestion and detlining passenger service. The Group mitigates this risk through extensive consuttation with community groups
and authorities at a local level and active participation in Government consuttations and other advisory groups. However, it should be noted that, despite
the mitigating action taken by management and a planned capital investment programme, which will provide additional capacity, it is anticipated that
demand will continue to exceed available capacity in London throughout the next ten years. In addifion, the investment in additiona! capacity at the
Group's three London airports is dependent on the outcome of the regulatory settlements in 2008 and 2013,

Existing planning approvals provide for approximate passenger traffic growth at Heathrow (including T5} to 90 million, Gatwick to around 40 million and
Stansted to around 25 mitlion. Planning consent to grow Stansted passenger traffic to around 35 million passengers per annum using the existing single
runway was refused by Uttlesford District Council in November 2006. BAA immediately submitted an appeal in order to obtain planning permission in line
with Government policy, The inquiry will commence on 30 May and is expected to last for around six weeks. On 30 January 2007, BAA announced details
of its development proposal for Stansted Generation 2 ("SG2'). This proposal includes the provision of a second runway and terminal and will have an
initial capacity for about 10 million passengers per annum. This proposal is subject to a separate planning inquiry.

The UK Government's Aviation White Paper ‘The Future of Air Transpor!’ (‘the White Paper’) was published in December of 2003 and clarified the
Government's policies regarding airport expansion for the whole of the country. )t emphasised the need for airport operators to invest in delivering new
capacity. The Group recognises a need to manage airport development following the White Paper in a way that does not lead fo a loss of public or
political confidence in BAA. To mitigate this risk, separate dedicated project teams (with relevant expertise and disciplines) for Heathrow and Stansted
have been established to work closely with local communities, airlines and other interested parties.

Environment

Environmental risks need to be managed throughout the Group as they have the potential to impact BAA’s reputation, and our licence to operate and to
grow. The Group mitigates these risks at a number of levels, including environmental management systems and training programmes embedded with
operations, clear environmental sfrategies, resource conservation iniliatives, proactive and progressive influencing of third parties, stakehoclder
engagement and community retations programmes. BAA works closely with a range of stakeholders to ensure that the Group reacts effectively to the
challenges posed by the environmental agenda.

Commercial and financial risks

Capital projects

BAA recognises that failure to control key capital project cosis and delivery could damage BAA's financial standing and reputation. The Group mitigates
this risk through adherence to a continually enhanced project process and by systems of project reviews before approval, during construction and after
project completion. In addition, specific additional controls for Heathrow T5 have been introduced, including the strengthening of the project management
team and the commitment of dedicated specialist internal audit and risk management resources to reinfotce assurance to the Board. Similar controls will
also be adopted for the Stansted Generation 2 and Heathrow East temminal developments. All projects include an allowance for risk and opportunity.
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Delivering Excellence

BAA has identified that failure to manage the Delivering Excellence change programme could lead to the non-realisation of the identified benefils andfor a
significant cast overrun which could result in reduced customer service, damage to company reputation, industrial action and an inabilily to generate
planned revenues. This risk is mitigated through clear plans and detailed business cases, employee agreement plans, effective and timely
communication, early engagement of affected third parties and frequent review of progress and issues by the Group’s Executive Commitiee, This
programme is well advanced.

Changes in demand

The risk of unanticipated tong-term changes in passenger demand for air travel could lead to misaligned operational capacity within the Group. Since it is
not possible to identify the timing or period of such an effect, the Group carries out evaluations through a serles of scenario planning exercises. In the
current environment, should the scenario planning indicate an event could have a substantial impact, scenario based exercises are carried out.

Industrial relations

The risk of industriat action by key staff that affects critical services, curtails operations, and has an adverse financial and reputational impact on the
Graup is recognised. BAA has a range of formal national and local consullative bodies to discuss pay, employment conditions and business issues with
the Trade Unions. A three year Pay Agreement was reached in August 2006 covering negotiated grades within the Company.

Treasury
The Board approves prudent treasury policies and delegates certain responsibilities to senior management who directly control day-te-day treasury
operations.

Treasury operales on a centralised non-speculative risk basis. The treasury function is not permitied to speculate in financial instruments. It's purpose is
to identify, mitigate and hedge residual treasury-related financial risks inherent to the Group’s business operations. To achieve this, the Group enters into
forward starting interest rate swaps and foreign exchange spot and ferward/swap transaclions to protect against interest rate and currency risk. The
primary treasury-related financial risks faced by the Group are the focus of treasury policies covering:

{a} Interest rates
To maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate debt within Board-approved parameters of a minimum of 70% fixed rate on existing and forecast debt. The
level of fixed-rate debt borrowings at the year-end was 86%.

{b) Foreign currency
BAA uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge capital expenditure in forsign currency ance a project is certain to go ahead. At December 2008,
there were no significant unmatched exposures.

{¢} Funding and liquidity
To ensure continuity of funding and flexibility debt maturities are spread over a range of dates, thereby ensuring that the Group is not exposed to
excessive refinancing risk in any one year.

{d} Covenants
Covenants are standardised wherever possible and are monitored on an ongoing basis with formatl testing reported to the Board and Executive
Commitiee, BAA continues to comply with all borrowing obligations and financial covenants.

{e) Counterpariy credit
The Group's exposure to credit-relaled losses, in the event of non-performance by counterpariies to financial instruments, is mitigaled by limiting
exposure to any one parly or instrument, The details of derivatives and other financia! instruments are set out in Note 18 to the financial staterments.

By order of the Board

José L
Chief nancial Officer

26 February 2007 26 February 2007
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Report of the directors

BAA Annuai Report 31 December 2006
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the nine month period o 31 December 2006 (‘the period').

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision and management of airport facilities in the UK and overseas. The Group is also involved in
airport-related property development, duty-free retailing, and owns and operates the Heathrow Express and Heathrow Connect rail link between
Heathrow and Paddington, London.

A review of the progress of the Company's business, during the period, the key performance indicators, principal business risks and likely future
deveiopments are reported in the Business Review on pages 2 to 13.

Results and Dividends
The results for the period are set out on page 3. An Interim dividend of 15.25 pence per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2006 was paid
on 11 August 2008. An Interim dividend of 7.0 pence per ordinary share for the period ended 31 December 2006 was paid on 10 November 2008.

Employment Policies
The Group's employment policies are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure they remain effective. Our overall aim is to create and sustain a
high performing organisation by building the commitment of our people.

Woe have defined a set of guiding principles to ensure fair recruitment and selection. We continue to aim to recruit, retain and develop high calibre
people and have talent and succession management programmes for managerial roles.

The Group is committed to giving full and fair consideration to applicants for employment. Every applicant or employee will be trealed equally
whatever their race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, religious belief, disability, age or community
background . We actively encourage a diverse range of applicants and commit to fair treatment of all applicants. Our investment in leaming and
development is guided by senior line managers who ensure that we provide the learning opportunities to support the competencies we see as key
to the Company’'s success.

Employee involvement and consultation is managed in a number of ways including employee surveys, team updates, briefings, roadshows, staff
newspapers, and an infranel. We also operate frameworks for consultation in all the businesses where we have a majority shareholding. We are
committed to managing people through change carefully and fairly.

Together these arrangements aim to provide a common awareness amongst employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
performance of their business. As a result of the acquisition of the Company by Airport Development and Investment Limited, a company held by a
consortium, our Group Sharesave Scheme and the BAA Share incentive Plan had to close. MHowever, we are currently in the process of replacing
these plans and we hope that a high level of our staff will decide to participate in our new plan once launched.,

Directors
__The directors who served during the period and since the pericd end areasfollows.
EngSengAng . appointed 26 June 2006
“MarcusAgius " resigned 20 December 2008
 StuartBaldwin """ | appointed 24 November 2006
_AnthonyBall T
_JuanBeéjarOchoa
_Mark Clare e B re5|gned 26 June 2006 .
* Michael Clasper _ T resigned 13 July 2006
Robert Cote appointed 26 June 2006
L e _resigned 31 Cctober 2006 o
_Rafael del Pino Calvo-Sotelo  appointed 20 December 2006
AntonyDouglas appointed 13July2006
" MargaretEwing " resigned 4 October 2008
Renaud Faucher T ppointed 31 Dclober 2008
. ChristopherFay  resigned 26 June 2006
_Joaquin Ayuse Garcla ° appointed 26 June 2006
_Ghiglain Gauthier - appeinted 2% June 2006 ]
‘ Joséleo T appointed 24 November 2006
. Stephen Nelson e app0|nted1 Aprll 2006
Lucas Osorio lturmendi appointed 26 June 2008
s e e JESIGNEA 24 NoOvember 2006 ...
 José Maria PérezTremps . appointed26June2006 . . .. ..
Alice Perkins " resigned 28 June 2006
. David Roberts . R . resigned 26 June 2006
Luis Sdnchez Salmeron " appointed 26 June 2006
Macky Tall o " appointed 26 June 2006
Mick Temple " resigned 13 July 2006
Michael Toms o resigned13July2006
_Nicolas Villen Jiménez " " appointed 26 June 20068
Tony Ward S resigned 13 July 2008
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Directors’ Interests
The Company is exemptad from disclosing interests of the directors in the share capitai of the ultimate parent company by virtue of the Companies
{Disclosure of Director's Interests) (Exemptions) Regulation 1885 (S] 1985 no 802).

None of the directors had any interests in the ordinary shares of the Company at the end of the period or had interests in any of the Company’s
subsidiaries at any time during the period. None of the directors had a material interest in any contract of significance with the Company or any of
its subsidiary undertakings during the year,

Directors’ Indemnity

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that directors of the company shali be indemnified by the Company against any costs incurred by
them in defending any proceedings brought against them as directars in which they are acquitted or judgement is given in their favour or relief from
any liability i granted 1o them by the court.

Donations

The Group’s charitable donationg for the nine month period amounted to £1,345,000 (31 March 2006: £1,313,000). BAA incurs expenditure,
which may be classified as political donations under the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 {the relevant provisions of which
are now contained in Part XA of the Companies Act 1985) . At the 2006 Annual General Meeting, BAA obtained a renewed shareholders’ approval
under this Act to commi! up fo 2 maximum of £60,000 of such expenditure (in aggregate) over the following four years. Expenditure in the 9 months
ended 31 December 2006 which, in our view, may fali within this category is:

Sponsorship of table at Scotlish Liberat Democrat Gala Dinner £2,000
Sponsorship of Scotlish reception at Liberal Democrat Party Conference 2006 £7,269

Total £9,269

Payment Policy
The Company complies with the Department of Trade and Industry's better payment practice code which states that responsible companies
should:

Agree payment terms at the ouliset of a deal and stick to them

Provide suppliers with clear guidance on payment procedures

Pay bilis in accordance with any coniract agreed or as required by law

Advise suppliers without delay when invoices are contested and settie disputes quickly.

The Company had 17 days purchases ouistanding at 31 December 2006, based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppliers during the
period ended 31 Decemnber 2008. This compared to 22 days as at 31 March 2006,

Audit Information

The directors are satisfied that the auditors are aware of alt information relevant o the audit of the Company’s conselidated Financial Statements
for the nine month period to 31 December 2006 and that they have taken ali steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make them
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Financial Risk Management
The Company’s financial risk management objectives and policies, including hedging policies along with the Company's exposure to risk can be
found oh pages 12 to 13 of the Risk Management section of the Business Review.

By order of the Board

Rachel Rowson
Company Secretary

26 February 2007
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

United Kingdom Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss and cash flow of the Group for that year.

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently

Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial

statements
Prepare the financial statements on the going-concern basis unless it is inappropriate {o presume that the Group will continue in business within the

foreseeable future.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statement.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial
position of the Company and the Group and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are
responsible for the system of internal conirol, and for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets ¢f the Company and the

Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The directors are also responsible for ensuring that all information relevant to the audit
has been made available 1o the auditors.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the statement of the auditors’ responsibilities.
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independent auditors’ report to the members of BAA Limited

We have audited the Group financial statements of BAA Limited for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of recognised income and expense, consolidated balance sheet, consolidated cash flow statement and the
related notes. These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of BAA Limited for the nine month peried ended 31 December 2006.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial siatements in accordance with applicable law and International
Financial Reperting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Cur responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing {UK and Ireland). This report, inciuding the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or o any other person to whom this report is shown or info whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Report of the Directors is consistent with the Group financial statements. The information given in the Report of the Directors
includes that specific information presented in the Business Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Report of the Directors.
in addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other infermation contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Group financial statements. The other
information comprises only the Report of the Directors and the Business Review. We consider the impiications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Group financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} issued by the Auditing Practices Board, An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant 1o the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate fo the Group's circumstances, consisiently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufiicient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Group financial
statements.

Opinion

In our opinion:

The Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unicn, of the state of the group's affairs
as at 31 Decamber 2006 and of its profit and cash flows for the nine month period then ended;

The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the |AS Regulation; and

The information given in the Report of the Directors is consistent with the Group financial statements.

bl

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

26 February 2007
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Consolidated income statement for the 9 months to 31 December 2006

9 months to 31 December 2006

Restated?

12 months to 31 March 2006°

Before certainre-  Certain re- Total Before certainre-  Certain re- Total
measurements’ measurements’ measurements’ measurements’
Note £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 7 2,012 - 2,012 2,313 - 2,313
Operating costs 2 (1,495) - (1,495) (1,616) - {1,618)
Other operaling income
Fair value gains on investment properties 8 - 206 206 - 225 225
Fair value (losses)gains on derivative 19 - (21) {21) - 4 4
financial instruments
Operating profit 1 517 185 702 697 229 926
Analysed as:
Operating profit before exceptional items 817 185 802 736 229 965
Exceptional ltems 4 {100) - {100) (39) - (39)
517 185 702 697 229 926
Share of profit of associates (net of interest 11 5 - 5 6 - 6
and tax)
Financing
Finance income 5 24 - 24 44 - 44
Finance costs b (162) - (162) {166) - {166)
Fair value gainsf{losses) on derivative 19 - 28 28 - (53) (53)
financial instruments
Profit before tax 384 213 597 581 176 757
Taxation 6 {76) {57} (133) (174} {51} (225)
Profit for the period from continuing 308 156 464 407 125 532
operations
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 307 156 463 406 125 531
Minority interest 1 - 1 1 - 1
Proposed final dividend for the period 7 . 165
Dividends in the period 7 243 232

' Certain re-measurements (including those of associates and joint ventures) consist of fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations
and disposals and the gains and losses arising on the re-measurement and disposal of derivative financial instruments, together with the associated fair
value gains and losses on any underlying hedged items that are part of a fair value hedging relationship, together with the related tax impact of these

items.

2 Prior year comparatives have been restated for the change in accounting policy to proportionately consolidate the Group's share of joint venture
entities’ assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The restatement of prior year comparatives has been made in the consolidated income statement,
balance sheet, cash flow statement, and in the notes accompanying the financial statements. No restatement of prior year comparatives was required
in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense. The impact of the restatement on prior year comparatives is set out in the Group's
aceounting policies disclosures under ‘investment in joint ventures’.
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense for the 9 manths to 31 December 2006

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 31 March
2006 20086
Note £m £m
Available-for-sale investments
Gains taken to equity 28 4 2
Cash flow hedges
Losses taken to equity 29 {30} (2)
Transferred to income statement 29 58 (33)
Actuarial (loss)/gain 21 {58) 72
Currency translation on foreign operations 29 31 (41)
Deferred tax crediti{charge) on items transferred directly to equity 20 15 (12}
Current 1ax (charge)credit on items transferred to equity 29 {3) 2
Current tax taken directly to equity (share-based payments) 26 -
Deferred tax taken directly to equity (share-based payments) 20 {14) 13
Net income recognised directly in equity 2% 1
Profit for the period from continuing operations 464 532
Total recognised income and expense for the period 493 533
Altribufable to
Equity holders of the parent 492 532
Minority interest 1 1
493 533
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Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008

Restated
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
Note £m £m
Assets
Neon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 10,134 9,580
Investment properties g 3,503 3,385
Intangible assets 10 130 1,077
Investment in associates 11 2 10
Available-for-sale investments 12 122 114
Derivative financial instruments 18 7 40
Trade and other receivables 14 4 8
13,902 14,214
Current assets
Inventories 13 30 30
Trade and other receivables 14 392 306
Derivative financial instruments 18 1 7
Held-to-maturity financial assets 15 - 412
Cash and shori-term deposits 16 93 404
516 1,249
Assets classified as held for sale 24 1,460 -
Total assets 15,878 15,463
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 {5,956) (6,180)
Derivative financial instruments 18 - (14)
Ceferred income tax liabilites 20 (1,687) (1,643)
Retirement benefit obligations 21 (233) (154)
Provisions 22 (95) (107)
Trade and other payables 23 {22) _(83)
{7,993) {8.181)
Current liabilities
Borrowings 17 (436) (283)
Derivative finangial instruments 18 {65) (69}
Provisions 22 {51) (63)
Current income tax liabilities {139) (152)
Trade and other payables 23 {724) (723)
{1,411) (1,200)
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 24 {125) -
Total liabilities {9,529) (9.471)
Net assets 6,349 5,902
Equity
Capital and reserves
Ordinary shares 25 1,102 1,080
Share premium 26 325 245
Own shares held 27 - (4)
Revaluation reserve 28 388 388
Fair value and ofher reserves 29 84 30
Retained earnings 30 4,440 4,243
Total shareholders’ equity 6,339 5,982
Minority interest in equity 10 10
Total equity 6,349 5,992

The financial statements were approved by the Beard of directors and authorised for issue on 26 February 2067 and signied on behaif of the Board.

(%L\ N@‘mw

Stephen Nelson %is Leo
Chief Exgcutive ief Financial Officer




Consolidated cash flow statement for the 9 months to 31 December 2006

Restated

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2008"
Note £m £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 33 771 986
Dividends received 16 18
Interest paid {216) {255)
Interest received 29 35
Income taxes paid {42) {83)
Net cash from operating activities 558 691
Investing activities
Purchase of:
Property, plant and equipment {1,091) (1,431)
Investment property g - (27)
Intangible assets 10 (15) (27)
Purchase of held-to-maturity financial asseis {524) {1,551)
Proceeds from held-to-maturity financial assets on maturity 936 1,356
Cash placed on deposits over three months - (100}
Cash returned from deposits over three months - 60
Net cash (placed)/retumed on short-term deposit - 556
Loan to parent entity (114) -
Loan repayments received from asscciates and joint ventures 2 1
Proceeds from sale of:
Intangible assets 20 -
investment property 22 1
Property, plant and equipment 36 73
Purchase of available-for-sale investments (5) (1}
Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash and cash equivalents) - (1,281)
Net cash used in investing activities (733) {2,371}
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 102 21
Proceeds from borrowings 200 3,330
Repayment of borrowings (198} (1,413}
Repayment of forward starting interest rate swaps - (28)
Proceeds from sale of own shares - 18
Dividends paid to shareholders (243} {231)
Net (used in)/provided by financing activities 33 {139) 1.697
Net (decrease)increase in cash and ¢ash equivalents (314} 17
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 444 427
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year’ 16 130 444

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.
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Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Group financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
{EW) and under the historical cost convention, except for investment properties, available-for-sale assets, derivative financial instruments and financial
liabilities that qualify as hedged items under a fair value hedge accounting system. These exceptions to the historic cost convention have been measured
at fair value in accordance with IFRS and as permitted by the Fair Value Directive as implemented in the amended Companies Act 1885.

The Group complies with both (AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, as adopted by the EU and the fuil version of 1AS 39 issued
by the IASB.

At the date of approving these financiai statements, the foliowing IFRS and International Financial Reporfing interpretations Committee (iFRIC), which
have not been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective:

* IFRIC 7 ‘Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29, Financial Reporiing in Hyperinflationary Economies’

+ IFRIC 8 'Scope of IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payment transactions’

+ IFRIC 9 'Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’

» IFRIC 10 'Interim Financial Reperting and Impairment’

« IFRIC 11 ‘Group and Treasury Shared Transactions’

» IFRIC 12 'Service Concession Agreements’

- [FRS 7 ‘Financial Insiruments — Disclosures’

+ IFRS & ‘Operating Segments’

The directors anticipate that the adopticn of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no maierial impact on the financial statements
of the Group.

Changes in accounting policies

During the year the Group changed its accounting treatment for joint venture entities to proportionately consolidate the financial performance for the
reporting period and the financial position at 31 December 2006 (previously joint venture enfities were equity accounted). The effect of this change in
policy is that the Group’s share of each of the joint venture entities’ assets, liabilities, incore and expenses are combined on a line-by-line basis with
similar items in the rest of the Group, rather than a single-line entry to recognise the Group's share of profit and investment in joint venture entities. This
change in policy has no impact on net profit or reserves. Prior period comparatives have been restated to reflect this change in policy and the impacts on
the consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet and consofidaled cash fiow statement have been set out under the accounting policy for
‘investments in joint ventures’ within this section.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consclidate the financiai statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries, together with the Group's share of profits
{net of interest and tax) and net assets of associated undertakings, accounted for using the equity method. The Group's share of assets and liabilities
and revenues and costs of joint ventures are recorded under proportionate consolidation on the appropriate financial line item. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or sold are consolidated for the periods from or to the date on which control passed.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s share of equity. Minarity interests consist of the
amount of thase interests at the date of the original business combination and the minority's share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
L.osses applicable to minority interests in excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary's equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additionat investrment to cover losses.

Primary financial statements format
The IFRS primary financiat statements are presented in accordance with IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’.

A columnar approach has been adopted in the income statement and the impact of three principal groups of items is shown in a separate column (*certain

re-measurements”). This allows the presentalion of the performance of the business before these specific fair value gains and losses (inciuding those of

associates). These items are:

i Fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations and disposals

i Derivative financial instruments and the fair value gains and lesses on any underlying hedged items that are part of a fair value hedging relationship
together with

ii. The associated tax impacts of the items in (i) and (ii} above.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributabile to the business combination, such as professional fees paid to accountants, legal advisers, valuers and other
consultants to effect the combination. General administrative costs and other costs that cannot be directly attributed to the particular combination being
accounted for are not included in the cost of the combination and are recognised as an expense when incurred.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the costs of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. [f, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabiliies and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the
excess is recognised immediately in the income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured as the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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Revenue
Revenue is recognised in accordance with [AS 18 ‘Revenue’ and comprises:

Airport and other traffic charges

Primarily:

= Passenger charges based on the number of departing passengers

= Aircraft landing charges levied according to weight

= Aircraft parking charges based on a combination of weight and time parked
= Other charges levied for passenger and baggage handling.

Retall
= World Duty Free income is recognised as each sale is transacted
* Concession fees from retail and commercial concessionaires af or around airports are based upon turnover certificates supplied by concessionaires.

Property and operational facilities

* Property letting sales, recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the rental period

= |Ssage charges made for operational systems (eg check-in-dlesks), recognised as each service period is provided
= Proceeds from the sale of trading properties, recognised on the uncenditional completion of the sale

= Other invoiced sales, recognised on the performance of the service,

Other
« (Other income includes rail income from ticket sales, recognised at the time of travel.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
pericd of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until the asset is complete and ready for use. Such
borrowing costs are capitalised once planning permission has been obtained and/or where projects are in the early stages of planning but the directors
are satisfied that the necessary consents will be received. investment income eamed on the temporacy investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Exceptional items

The Group presenis a total net figure, on the face of the income statement, for exceptional items. Exceptional items are material items of income and
expense that, because of the unusual nature and expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, merit separate presentation to allow an
understanding of the Group's financial performance.

Such events may include gains or Josses on the disposal of businesses or assets, major reorganisation of businesses, closure or mothballing of terminals
and those costs incurred in bringing new airport terminal complexes and airfields 1o operational readiness that are not able to be capitalised as part of the
project.

Additional details of items disclosed as exceptional are provided.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their camying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset {(or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous camying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwilk arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the costs of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assels, fiabilities and contingent liabiiities recognised. Goodwill arising on acquisition is
capitalised and is subject to an impairment review, either annualfly or more frequently if there is an indication that the carrying value of goodwill may be
impaired. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement. An impaiment loss recognised in respect of goodwill is nol reversed in a
subsequent period.

On acquisition, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment iesting. The Group’s current goodwill balance has been
allocaled to the cash-generating units that represent the Group's investment in those related operations.

Internaily-generated intangible assets

Development expenditure incurred in respect of individual projects is capitalised when the fulure econotnic benefit of the project is probable and is
recognised only if all of the following conditions are met:

= Anintangible asset is created that can be separately identified

= |tis probable that the intangible asset created will generate future economic benefits

= The development cost of the intangible asset can be measured reliably.

This type of expenditure primarily relates to internally developed software and website projects and these are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
useful lives of three 1o seven years.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incumed.
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Asset management contracts
Intangible assets in respect of airport asset management contracts represent the right fo operate the airport and certain assets for the period of the
contracts and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining lives of the coniracts, subject to impairment,

Gther intangibie assets
intangible assets acquired separaiely or as a result of a business acquisition are capitalised at cost and fair value respectively. Where amortisation is
charged on these assets, the expense is taken to the income statement through operating costs.

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at fair value at the balance sheet date, as determined
at the interim and full-year reporting dates by the directors and by external valuers at least once every five years. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investmenti property are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Gains or losses on disposal of an invesiment property are recognised in the income statement on the unconditional completion of the sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Operational assets

Terminal complexes, airfield assets, plant and equipment, rail assets, and Group occupied properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. At the date of transition lo IFRS, the Group elecied to measure the majority of operational land at fair value and to use these fair
values as deemed cost al that date. This excludes land acquired in 2002 for the construction of Terminal 5, a$ its carrying value is considered to be at an
appropriate value given the recent acquisition of the land.

Assets in the course of construction are stated at cost less provision for impairment.  Assets in the course of construction are transferred to completed
assets when substantially all the activilies necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete. Where appropriate, cost includes borrowing costs
capitalised, own labour costs of construction-related project management, and directly attributable overheads. Projects that are in the early stages of
planning are capitalised where the directors are satisfied thal it is probable the necessary consents will be received and the projects will be developed to
achieve a successful delivery of an asset such that future commercial returns will flow to the Group. The Group reviews these projects on a regular basis,
and at least every six months, to determine whether events or circumstances have arisen that may indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not
be recoverable, at which point the asset would be assessed for impairment.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on operational assets, other than land, to write off the cost of the assets less estimated residual value, by equal instaiments over
their expected useful lives as set out below:

Fixed asset lives
Terminal complexes

Terminal building, pier and satellite structures 20-60 years
Terminal fixtures and fittings 5-20 years
Airport plant and egquipment
Baggage systems 15 years
Screening equipment 7 years
Lifts, escalators and travelators 20 years
Other plant and equipment, including runway lighting and building plant 5-20 years
TFunnels, bridges and subways 50100 years
Airfields
Runway surfaces 10-15 years
Runway bases 100 years
Taxiways and aprons 50 years
Rail
Airpori transit systems
Roalling stock 20 years
Track 50 years
Railways
Roliing stock 840 years
Tunnels 100 years
Track metatwork 5-10 years
Track bases 50 vears
Signals and electrification work 40 years
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles 4-8 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 4-5 years
Computer software 3-7 years
Other land and buildings
Short leasehold properties Over period of lease

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent of other assets, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the assel belongs is estimated. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair vaiue less costs of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset axceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted (o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Impaiment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. ' such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case
the camying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount less any residual value, on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful life.
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Investments in associates
Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the
associates, less any impaimment in the value of individual investments. The Group’s share of net profits and losses of associates are included in the

income statement net of interest and tax.

Investments in joint ventures
Previously, the Group carried investments in joint ventures in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of

net assets of the joint venture less any impairment. The Group's share of net profits and losses of joint ventures was included in the income statement
net of interest or tax. This method of acceunting is commonly known as the equity method. An altemative method of accounting is permissible under IAS
31 “inferests in Join{ Ventures” known as proportionate consolidation. The Group has taken the decision (o adopt the proportionate consolidation method
in aceounting for joint ventures.

Under proportionate consolidation, the Group's share of assets and liabilities and revenues and costs of joint venturas are recorded within the appropriate
category in the balance sheet or income statement. This is a presentational change only and there is no impact on the net assets or profit of the Group.
This change in accounting pelicy has been undertaken to align the accounting pelicy of the Group with the accounting policies applied in its' parent

COmpary.
The figures as at 31 March 2006 have been restated from the amounts previously reported to reflect this change in accounting policy as foliows:

Consolidated balance sheet 31 March 2006
As restated

As previously  proportionate
reported consolidation

£m £m
Property, plant & equipment 9,565 9,580
Investment properties 2,894 3,385
intangible assets 1,041 1,077
Investment in joint ventures 248 -
Other non-current assets 132 172
Current assets 1,225 1,249
Non current assets held for sale - -
Total assets 15,205 15,463
Long-term borrowings (5,956) (6,180)
Other non-current liabilities (1,987} (2,001)
Current liabilities (1,270) 1,280)
Total liabilities (9,213) (9,471)
Net assets 5,992 5,992
Consolidated cash flow statement 31 March 2006
As restated
As previously  proportionate
reported  consoclidation
£m £m
Net cash from operating aclivities 977 986
Net cash from investing acfivities {2,369) {2,371)
Net cash from financing activities 1,697 1,897
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10 17
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 427 427
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of vear 437 444
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Consolidated income statement
31 March 2006

As previously reported Ag restated proportionate consolidation
Before certain Certain re- Total Before certain Certain re- Total
re- measurements’ re- measurements’
measurements’ measurements’
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2,275 - 2,275 2,313 - 2,313
Operating costs (1,604) - (1,604) {1,616) - {1,618)
Other operating income:
Fair value gains on invesiment - 184 184 - 225 225
properties
Fair vatue (losses)/gains on - 4 4 - 4 4
derivative financial instruments
Operating profit 671 188 859 697 229 926
Analysed as:
Operating profit before exceptional 710 188 898 736 229 965
items
Exceptional ltems (39) - (39) (39) - {39)
671 188 859 697 229 926
Share of profit of associates (net of 19 41 60 6 - <]
interest and tax}
Financing
Finance income 44 - 44 44 - 44
Finance costs (153) - (153) (166) - (166}
Fair value gains/{losses} on (53) (53} - (53) (53}
derivative financial instruments
Profit before tax 581 176 757 581 176 757
Taxation {174) (51} (225) (174) (51) (225)
Profit for the period from 407 125 532 407 125 532
continuing operations
Aftributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 406 125 531 406 125 531
Minority interest 1 1 1 - 1

T Certain re-measurements (including those of associates and joint ventures) consist of fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations
and disposals and the gains and losses arising on the re-measurement and disposal of derivative financial instruments, together with the associated fair
value gains and losses on any underlying hedged items that are part of a fair value hedging relationship, together with the related tax impact of these
items.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based onh the substance of the amangement and requires an assessment of
whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangemenl conveys a righl to use the asset.

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of ihe ieased item, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum iease payments. Lease paymenis are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance costs are charged directly against income.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group refains substantially a)l the risks and benefits of cwnership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the camrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisabie value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measurad at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are discounted to present
value where the effect is material.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments and bank overdrafts, where offset is allowed.
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Financial instruments

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsegquently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

investments

On initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, investments that are classified as ‘held-for-trading’ and ‘available-for-sale’ are measured at fair
value. Fair value gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised in the income statement. Fair value gains or losses on available-for-sale
investments are recognised in a separate component of equity until the investment is sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative fair value gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the income statement.

Assets classified as ‘loans and receivables' or ‘held-to-maturity’ are recognised on the balance sheet at their amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method, less any provision for impairment.

Non-derivative financial assets wilh fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an aclive market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’ and
are carried at amortised cost using the effeclive interest method. Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intent and ability to hold-to-maturity are classified as ‘held-to-maturity’ and are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.  For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
investments are de-recognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

For investments that are traded in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the reporting date. For
investments where there is ho quoted market price, fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, ar
by reference to the current market value of similar investments.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on frade-date being the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Investments are classified as held-for-salg if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale {ransaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condifion, management are committed to the
asset disposal, and disposal is expecied to he completed within 12 months. Assels classified as held-for-sale cease {o be depreciated and are measured
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less selling costs,

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting ali of its liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently sfated at amortised cost uniess part of a
fair value hedge relationship. Any difference between the amount initially recognised (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Convettible bonds

Convertible bonds are regarded as compound instruments, consisting of a fiability component and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using the prevailing markel interest rate for a similar non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds are allocated to the
conversion option and recognised in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the par value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Where shares are issued above
par valug, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account,

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs, is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company's equity holders unti) the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of, Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental costs, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders.

Income tax

Deferred income taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the Group financial statements. Deferred income taxation is not provided on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, if at the time of the transaction there is no effect on either accounting or taxabie profit or loss.

Deferred income taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, assotiates and joint ventures, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is confrolled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income taxation is determined using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantially enacted, by the balance sheet date, and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset or liability is realised or setlied.

Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group's UK pension fund is a defined benefit scheme which is self-administered. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments or changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited in the statement of recognised income and expense In the pericd in which they arise. Past service cost is
recognised immediately in the income statement to the extent that the benefits are already vested, otherwise it is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested.
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The amount of income or expenditure recognised in the income statement as staff costs, in relation to the defined benefit scheme, comprises the service
cost of pension provision relating to the period, past service costs recognised in accordance with the above policy, the interest cost (being the increase in
the present value of scheme liabilities since the benefits are closer to settlement) and the Group's long-term expected retum on assets (based on the
market vaiue of the scheme assets at the start of the period, amended for expecied changes in the period resulting from benefits payable and
contributions receivable by the scheme),

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
avaifable refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme plus any unrecognised past service cost.

Employees in certain subsidiaries are membets of separate defined contribution schemes. The pension costs charged to the income statement are the
contributions payable by the Group during the year.

Share-based payments
Foliowing the 100% acquisition of BAA by the Ferrovial Consortium in June 2006, all share awards were exercised.

Equity-settled share-based paymenis, under share schemes, were measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair vaiue determined at the grant date
was expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting périod, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

For the Executive Share Option Scheme (‘ESOS') and the Sharesave Scheme, the fair value of awards was measured using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The fair value of awards made under the Performance Share Plan ('PSP') was based on the market value of shares at the date of grant
adjusted to reflect a Total Shareholder Return market-hased performance condition. The fair value of awards made under the Deferred Annual Bonus
Scheme (‘DAB') was based on the market value of the shares at the date of grant.

No expense was recognised (any previously recognised expense was reversed) for awards that did not uitimately vest except where vesting was
conditional upon a measure linked to BAA pic's share price (‘a market condition’) or other market conditions. The likelihood of achieving the market
condition was taken into account in the fair value and, therefore, the award was treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition was
satisfied, provided that any other performance condition was met.

Where an award was cancelled, it was {reated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award was
recognised immediately in the income statement.

The cost of share-based compensation schemes was recognised as an expense within staff costs in the income statement.

Dividend distribution
A dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
shareholders’ right to receive payment of the dividend is established by approval of the dividend at the Annual General Meeting. Interim dividends are
recognised when paid.

Foreign currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary ecanomic environment in which
the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the Group's functional currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the entfity using the exchange rates prevailing at the daies of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year-end.
Differences arising on translation are charged or credited to the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and
gualifying net investment hedges. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assels, are
recognised in equity within the fair value reserve.

The results of Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency {Sterling} are translated into Sterling at the average exchange rate and the balance sheets are translated at year-end exchange
rates. Exchange differences arising on retransiation are taken directly to a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders' equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recagnised in the income statement as pari of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the year-end closing exchange rate.

Financial risk management chjectives and policies
The Group’s principal financial instruments (other than derivatives) comprise bank loans, listed bonds, listed convertible bonds, cash, short-term deposits
and commercial paper. The main purpose of these instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The Group aiso enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward currency contracts. The purpose of
these derivatives is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The Group does not use financiat instruments for speculative purposes. The freasury function operates on a centralised non-speculative risk basis. Its
purpeose is to identify, mitigate and hedge residual treasury-related financial risks inherent to the Group's business operations, in accordance with Group
treasury policies.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risk (fair value interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate re-pricing
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Board approves, annuaily, prudent treasury policies for managing each of the risks
summarised below.

Market risk

The Group operates internationally and its baiance sheet is exposed to foreign currency risk arising primarily with respect to the Austrafian Doliar, the
Hungarian Ferint and the Euro. The Group's policy is to seek to mitigate the effects of material structural currency exposures by matching overseas
investments and forecasted cash flows with borrowings denominated in the same currency where freely available.

For debt raised in foreign currencies, the Group uses cross-currency swaps to hedge the related interest and principal payments. in cases where debt is
raised in foreign currencies, 100% of the exposure is hedged in this way, subject to a de minimus limit. The Group uses foreign currency forward
cantracts o hedge material capital expenditure in foreign currencies once a project is certain to proceed.
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Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, The Group's exposure to credit-related losses, in the event of non-performance by
counterparties to financial instruments, is mitigated by limiting exposure to any one party or instrument and ensuring only counterparties within defined
credit risk parameters are used.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of funding and flexibility, ensuring debt maturities are spread over a range of dates, thereby ensuring that the
Group is not exposed to excessive refinancing risk in any one year. The Group’s pelicy is to ensure there are sufficient forecasted cash balances and
undrawn committed facilities to fund forecast capital expenditure requirements for 18 months or 12 months forecast net funding requirement, whichever is
greater.

Price risk
The Group is not materially exposed to equity security price risk on investments held by the Group and classified on the consolidated balance sheet as
avaitable for sale at fair value through equity. The Group does not have significant exposure to commadity price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its short-term and long-term borrowings. Botrowings issued at variable interest rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value inlerest rate risk. The Group's policy is to maintain a mix of fixed 1o
floating rate debt within Beard approved parameters such that a minimum of 70% of existing and forecast debt is at a fixed rate. To manage this mix, the
Group enters into fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps., These swaps are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. The Group also uses floating
rate interest bearing financial assets as a natural hedge of the exposure to fair vafue interest rate risk.

The Group undertakes forward-starting interest rate swaps to minimise exposure to cash flow interest rate risk for future forecast issuance of debt.

Accounting for derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign currency contracls, interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps to hedge risks
associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivalive instruments are recognised on the balance sheet at fair value. The
method of recognising any resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the risk
being hedged.

Hedges are classified as:

* Fair value hedges, where they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability

= Cash flow hedges, where they hedge the exposure {o variability in ¢ash flows that are either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset, liability or forecasted transaction

* Hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges, are recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are desighated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in equity. The gain or
loss refating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediateiy in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the same period that the hedged item is recognised in the income statement. However, where the forecast transaction that is hedged results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, property, plant and equipment) or liahility, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are
transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the asset or fiability.

Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to
the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity; the gain or loss relating 1o the ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the
income statemert. Gains and losses accumulated in equity are recycled fo the income staterment on dispesal of the foreign operation.

For derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to the income statemernt.

Subject to the above, fair value changes in the value of derivative financial instruments recorded in the income statement are classified under either
finance income, finance costs ar as part of operating profit, depending on the nature of the derivative financial instrument.

Hedge accounting is disconiinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or ne longer qualifies for hedge accounting,
Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is recycled to the income statement at the same time as the hedged item. For
hedges of forecasted transactions, if the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
transferred to the income statement immediately.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In applying the Group’s accounting policies management have made estimates and judgements in a2 number of key areas. Aclual results may, however,
differ from the estimates calculated and management believe that the following areas present the greatest level of uncertainty.

White Paper

The UK Government's Aviation White Paper The Future of Air Transport’ (‘the While Paper’), published on 16 December 2003, sets out the
Government's policy for runway development in the UK. The Govemment chose a second runway at Stansted as its preferred location for the first new
runway in the South East of England. As the development of Stansted will be the subject of a planning inquiry, the Group is pressing ahead with the
necessary preparation of a planning application and environmental impact assessment. The costs incurred o date have been capitaiised as part of the
runway development costs. This is based on management’s helief that it is highly probable the necessary consents will be received and the project will
be developed to achieve a successful delivery of an asset such that future benefits will flow io the Group.

Additionally, the Group has announced three voluntary schemes to compensate those people living near Stansted Airport, whose homes will be affected
by the airport expansion. These costs are also capitalised as part of the runway development costs.

Investment properties

Investment properties (excluding those acquired on the acquisition of Budapest Airport), were valued at a fair value at 31 December 2006 by Drivers
Jonas, Chartered Surveyors, Strutt and Parker, Charlered Surveyors, King Sturge, Valuers and Surveyors, and the Company’s Head of BAA Professional
Services, John Arbuckle BLE (Hons). These valuations were prepared in accordance with {FRS and the appraisal and valuation manual issued by the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations were carried out having regard to comparable market evidence. in assessing fair value, current and
potential future income (after deduction of non-recoverable outgoings) has been capitalised using vields derived from market evidence.

Taxation

Provisions for tax contingencies require management to make judgements and estimates in relation fo tax issues and exposures. Amounts provided are
based on managemment's interpretation of country specific tax law and the likelihood of settlement. Tax benefits are not recognised unless the tax
positions are probable of being sustained. In atriving at this position, management reviews each material tax benefit to assess whether a provision
should be taken against full recognition of the benefit on the basis of potential settiement through negotiation andfor litigation. All such provisions are
included in current tax liabilities.

Financial instruments

The Group’s investment in National Air Traffic Services Group (‘NATS") is classified as an available-for-sale investment and recognised on the balance
sheet at fair value. The invesiment is not quoted in an active market and the calculation of its fair value is based on a discounted cash flow model using
forecasted cash flows and an appropriate discount rate selected by management.

Pensions

Certain assumptions have been adopted for factors that detenmine the valuation of the Company’s liability for pension obligations at period end and future
retums on pension scheme assets and charges to the income statement. The factors have been determined in consultation with the Company's actuary
taking into account market and econemic conditions. Changes in assumptions can vary from period to period as a result of changing conditions and other
determinants which may cause increases or decreases in the valuation of the Campany's liability for pension obligations. The objective when setting
pension scheme assumptions for fulure periods is to reflect the expected actual outcomes. The impact of the change in assumptions on the valuation of
the net liability for pension schemes is reflected in the statement of recognised income and expense.

Contingent liabilities
A provision for legal costs has been made for the legal action brough! against the Group by WDFA bond holders of US$109 million of loan notes of World
Duty Free Americas Inc. {now known as DFA Inc.). The Board remains confident of a successful outcome to this itigation.

On 22 December 2006 Wallis Ingatian Zri {Waliis'), a Hungarian property company, issued proceedings in the Budapest Metropolitan Court against BA
Zrt {the holding company for Budapest Airport) claiming that an agreement had been concluded establishing a partnership between Wallis and BA Zrt in
relation to real estate development at Budapest Airport which BA Zrt by its actions had rendered impossible lo perform. Wallis seek either a declaration
that they jointly own certain real estate at the airport or a ruling that they are entitied to compensation in the sum of ten billion HUF (£26.8 miltion) and
interesl. The Company has been advised that the claim is without merit and it will be vigorously defended.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Segment information

The Group's primary reporting format is business segments. The operating businesses are primarily the individual airports, which are organised and
managed separately. The secondary format is geagraphical segmenits based on the location of the business assets and aperations.

The 'Other airports’ business segment includes Southampton, Naples and Budapest airports. The results for the prior year include the three-month post-
acquisition contribution for Budapest Airport. Budapest Airport has been reclassified as an asset held for sale as detailed in Note 24,

The ‘Other operations’ business segment consists of corporate activities (including certain consolidation adjustments that are held at corporate level},
BAA Lynton, the net income from international management contracts and other commercial operations.

Inter-segmental transactions are considered immaterial and are net analysed separately.

The following tabies present details of revenue, operating profit, profit before tax and certain asset and liability information in respect of the business and
gecgraphic segments. Whilst not required by IAS 14 'Segment Reporting', additional revenue disclosure is provided in respect of the revenue streams by

nature.

Al information relates to continuing operations.

9 months fo 31 December 2006

Restated
12 months to 31 March 2006

Operating Profit’

Operating Profit’

Before certain Before certain
re- Certain re- re- Certain re-
Revenue measurements’ measurements® Total Revenue measurements? measurements’ Total
{a) Business segments £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Price regulated London airporis 1,295 421 132 553 1,570 549 143 692
Heathrow® 869 292 75 367 1,077 421 45 466
Gatwick 285 90 33 123 326 82 29 111
Stansted 141 39 24 63 167 46 68 115
Scottish airports 151 61 23 84 185 67 27 94
QOther airports 195 46 7 53 95 1 10 21
World Duty Free 310 21 - 21 385 26 - 26
Other pperations 61 {32} 23 (9) 78 44 49 93
Total 2,012 517 185 702 2,313 697 229 926
Share of associate's profit (net of
interest and taxation)
Other airports 5 - 5 8 - [
Unallocated income and
expenses
Finance income 24 44
Finance costs (162) (166
Fair value gainsf{losses) on
derivative financial
instruments 28 (63
Profit before tax 597 757
Income tax expense {133} (225
Net profit for the period 464 532

1 After exceptional items.

2 Certain re-measurements (including those of associates) consist of fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations and disposals and
the gains and losses arising on the re-measurement and disposal of derivative financial instruments, together with the associated fair value gains and

losses on any underlying hedged items that are part of a fair value hedging relationship .

*tneludes MHeathrow rail refated activities (Heathrow Express and Heathrow Connect).
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31 December 2006

Restated

31 March 2006

Depreciation Depreciation
Capital and Capital and
Assets Liabilities expenditure amortisation Assets  Lliabilities expenditure amorlisation
{b) Business Segments £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Price regulated London
airports 12,482 {557) 954 213 11,499 (562) 1,430 247
Heathrow 9,374 (441} 802" 150° 8,540 {436) 1,280 167¢
Gatwick 1,702 {73) 66 41 1,647 {84) 84 51
Stansted 1,406 {43) 86 22 1,312 {42) 66 29
Scottish airports 833 (26) 29 15 794 (36) 45 18
Other airports 72 (46) 16 52 1,514 {140) 19" 13?
World Duty Free 54 (40) 3 7 49 (37) 8 10
Other operations 778 (534) 12 10 545 {484) 14 10
Assets classified as held for
sale 1,460 {125) 26 20° - -
Total 15,679 {1,328) 1,040 270 14,401 {1,259) 1,517 299
Investrment in equity
accounted associates
Other airport interests L 20 34
Total operations 15,699 (1,328) 1,040 270 14,435 {1.259) 1,517 299
Unallocated assets and liabilities
Cash, borrowings and
available-for-sale
invesiments 168 {5,948) 973 (6,119)
Derivative financial
instruments 8 (65) 47 (83)
Retirement benefit
obligations - (233) - (154)
Taxaticn - {1,822) - {1,795)
Interest 3 {133) 8 {61)
Group 15,878 {9,529) 1,040 270 15,463 (9,471} 1,517 299
" Includes capital expenditure of £15 million (31 March 2006; £27 million) relating to intangible assets.
2 Includes amortisation charge of £24 million (31 March 2006: £25 miflion) refating to intangible assets.
Restated
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Capital Segment Capital Segment
Revenue  expenditure assets Revenue expenditure assets
{c) Geographical Segments £m £m £m £m £m £m
UK
Airports 1,462 990 13,364 1,776 1,482 12,396
Other operations and World Duty Free 356 24 826 432 18 564
Total 1,818 1,014 14,190 2,208 1,500 12,960
International
Airports - Europe 179 26 1,483 74 13 1,411
Other operations - Rest of World 15 - 24 31 4 54
Total 194 26 1,507 105 17 1,465
Total operations 2,012 1,040 16,697 2,313 1,517 14,425
Investment in equity accounted associates
Rest of World 2 10
Total 2 10
Unallocated assets 179 1,028
Group 15,878 15,463
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(d) Business and geographical segments continued

Restated
9 months to 31 December 2006 12 months to 31 March 2006
Airport Airport
and other Property and and other  Property and
traffic operational traffic operalional
Revenue Retail Charges facilities Other Total Retail charges facilities Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Price regulated
London airports 342 656 205 92 1,295 427 769 257 117 1,570
Heathrow 184 457 144 84 869 241 540 189 107 1,077
Gatwick 98 135 47 5 285 113 156 51 & 326
Stansted 60 64 14 3 141 73 73 17 4 167
Other UK airponts 43 99 20 5 167 50 124 24 8 206
Glasgow 16 36 8 2 62 20 45 9 3 77
Edinburgh 17 36 7 1 61 19 47 7 2 75
Aberdeen 5 17 4 2 28 6 19 6 2 33
Southampton 5 10 1 - 16 5 i3 2 1 21
Other UK
businesses 310 - - 29 339 385 - - 35 420
World Duty Free 310 - - - 310 385 - - - 385
APP - - - 19 19 - - - 26 26
BAA Lynton - - - 9 9 - - - 7 7
Other - - - 1 1 - - - 2 2
Total UK 695 755 225 126 1,801 862 803 281 160 2,196
International airports
Naples 7 14 4 3 28 9 17 5 - 3
Budapest 10 51 13 77 151 3 14 4 22 43
Total Europe 17 65 17 80 179 12 3 9 22 74
Rest of World 14 - - 18 32 18 - - 25 43
Group 726 820 242 224 2,012 892 924 290 207 2,313
The segmental information above analyses revenue by origin, Revenue by destinafion is not matenally different to revenue by origin.
The total rental income derived from the Group's investment properties, included in the segmental disclosure above, is as follows:
Restated
9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Retail 143 200
Property and operational facilities T2 85
Other 7 7
Total 222 202
Total contingency rert’ and rents from indefinite tenancies® recognised in revenue amounted to:
9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Retail 123 156
Property and operational facilities 15 19
Tota! 138 175

' Contingancy rents represent concession fees received from retail and commercial concessionaires.

2 Indefinite tenancies are typically mutti-let offices and industrial premises where a standard indefinite tenancy is used, which is determinable by the tenant

on 3 months' notice at any lime.,

Services provided to tenants (service charges, maintenance rents and healing rents), eamed revenue of £2 million (31 March 2008: £2 million).

Guaranteed minimum payments relating to certain investment properties are excluded from the definition of contingency rents and are disclosed within

minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases (as analysed in Note 31).
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2 Operating costs
9 months to 12 monte
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Operating costs {inciuding exceptional items) include the following:
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 333 423
Social security 39 39
Pensions’ 68 70
Penslons — future enhancements® - 13
Share-based payments 5 13
Other staff related 33 43
478 801
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 246 274
Amortisation of intangible assets
Software 15 22
Asset management contract 9 3
270 299
Other operating costs
Lass/profit) on sale of:
Property, plant and equipment 6 {44)
Budapest Airport’s ground handting operations (10) -
Retail expenditure 153 175
Retail marketing 13 14
Contract and agency staff 42 35
Maintenance and cleaning 123 182
Insurance 15 2¢
Bid advisory costs 45 15
Other marketing and communications 14 15
Fund and asset management costs 10 10
Rent and rates 95 111
Utilities 21 104
Police 42 52
General expenses® 173 121
812 810
Own work capitalised” (65) —{94)
Total operating costs 1,495 1,616
Analysed as:
Underlying operating costs 1,395 1,577
Exceptional costs 100 39
1,495 1,616

Tincludes a charge of £17 million (31 March 2006: £3 million) disclosed within exceptional items,

2 Included within exceptional items.

* Own work capitalised Includes £41 mitfion (31 March 2006: £77 million) in relation to staff costs,
* includes costs of sales for fuel business in Budapest Airport of £63 million (31 March 2006: £16 million)

Exceptional items included within operating costs are analysed in Note 4.

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
The aforementioned charges include:
Rentals under operating leases
Plant and machinety 24 32
Other 13 26
37 58
Property lease and sub lease charges
21 26

Minimum lease payments

Property operating costs include £7 million (31 March 2006: £7 million) in respect of coaching and management fees relating to the provision of car
parking facilities for airline and other airport workers. This amount is recovered through the sale of airport passes and is included within property and

operational facilities income {Note 1{d)}.
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Auditors’ remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration relates to fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

9 months to 12 months o
BAA Limited 31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the
cansolidation and the parent company accounts 0.5 0.4
Fees payable to the Company's auditors of its subsidiaries for
other services:
audit of the Company's subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 0.5 0.5
other services pursuant to legislation 0.4 0.7
taxation services 0.2 0.2
other services 0.9 0.6
2.5 2.4

3 Employee information

a) Employee numbers

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) of the Group was as follows:

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Number Number
UK

Airports 9,961 8,567
World Duty Free 1,989 1,901
BAA Lynton 26 26
Other operations 484 511

International
Europe 2,644 2,860
Rest of Waorld’ 472 472
15,576 15,337

T Employee numbers for Rest of World include 446 (31 March 2006: 445) employees of BAA Indianapotis where the Group does not bear normal

employee risks and recovers all associated costs from Indianapolis Airport Authority.

b) Employees and directors

9 months to 12 months 1o
31 December 2006 31 March 2008
£'000 £'000
Key management compensation
Salaries and shori-term employee benefits 6,564 6,061
Post-employment benefit contributions 453 272
Share based payments 705 1,666
7,722 7,999
The key management compensation above includes executive divectors.
¢} Directors’ remuneration
9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 20086
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 5,973 3,437
Sums paid to third parties for directors’ services 154 198

Retirement benefits accrued to 6 (3t March 2006: 7} directors during the period under a defined benefits scheme. At 31 December 20086, retirement
benefits are accruing for 3 directors. During the period 6 (31 March 2006: 5) directors exercised options over a number of £1 shares in BAA plc. For the
nine months ended 31 December 2006 £3,784 thousand (31 March 2006: £nil) was paid o directors as compensation for loss of office.

Of the directors in office at 31 December 2008, 7 did not receive emoluments during the period.

Highest paid director

9 months to
31 December 2006
£'000
Total amount of emoluments and amounts
{excluding shares) receivable under long-term
incentive schemes 2,611

Defined benefits scheme:
Accrued pension at period end 244
Accrued lump sum 6,306

12 months to
31 March 2006
£000

1,081

228
3,580

During the period the highest paid director exercised options over a number of £1 shares in BAA plc. The increase in the acerued lump sum payable is
due to early retirement and a fonger pension payment pericd than previously anticipated. Compensation for Joss of office of £1,600 thousand was paid in

the nine months ended 31 December 2006.
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4 Exceptional items

9 months to 12 months o
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Operating items
Reorganisation costs
Pension {7) (16)
Other staff relaled {including severance and redundancy) (8) (38}
General expenses (including programme design and implementation) (7} 7}
(22) {61}
Terminal 5 operational readiness costs {11) (4}
Bid advisory costs {45) (15)
Staff related costs due to change in ownership {17) -
Terminal 2 accelerated depreciation {17) -
Profit on sale of Budapest Airport's ground handling eperations 10 -
Profit on sale of Heathrow land 2 41
{78} 22
Total excepfional items before income tax (100) (39)
Tax credit on exceptional Hems 15 7
Total exceptional items {85) (32}

Reorganisation costs
The implementation of the change programme ('Delivering Excellence’) to improve customer service and operational efficiency is aimost complete. Costs
of £22 million were incurred during the nine months to 31 December 2006 (31 March 2006: £61 million).

Terminal 5 operational readiness costs
Costs of £11 million were incurred in the nine months to 31 December 2006 (31 March 20086: £4 million). Further significant costs will be incurred in the

lead up to "go live" in March 2008.

Bid advisory costs
The advisory costs incurred in relation to the acquisition of BAA plc by Airport Development and Investment Limited {'ADIL} were £45 million for the nine

months to December 2006 (31 March 2006: £15 million).

Staff related costs due to change in ownership
The declaration that the final offers by ADIL were unconditional on 26 June 2006 was treated as a change in control and resulted in a charge of £17

million, including National Insurance costs, compensation for loss of office and pension costs.

Terminal 2 accelerated depreciation
As part of its programme to deliver world class facilities for passengers, Heathrow proposes to build a new teminal, called Heathrow East, which will
replace Terminal 2. The expected productive life of Terminal 2 has subsequently been reduced and a charge of £17 millior has been made for additional

depreciation during the period.

Profit an sale of Budapest Afrport’s ground handling operations
The sale of Budapest Airport's ground handing operations tock place during the period to 31 December 2006 resulting in a profit of £10 million.

Profit on sale of Heathrow land
On 21 March 2006, the sale of land to allow the development of a hotel adjacent to Terminal 5 at Heathrow Airport was completed. An exceptional profit

of £41 million was recognised in the period. A further £2 million has been recognised in the current period.

5 Net finance costs

9 months to Restated
31 December 2006 12 months to
31 March 2006
Note £m £m
Finance income
Interest on bank deposits and commercial paper 24 44
Finance costs
Interest on bank overdrafts and ioans {270) (260}
Convertible loan notes
interest payable {18) {29)
Aceretion of debt liability {8) (21
Unwinding of discount on Terminal 5 land purchase provision (3y )
Total borrowing costs (299) (317)
Less: capitalised borrowing costs 8 137 151
(162) {166)
Net finance costs ~ {138) (122)

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualifving assets (i.e. capitalised borrowing costs) arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by
applying an average capitalisation rate of 5.16% (31 March 2006: 5.26%) to expenditure incurred on such assets.
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6 Taxation
9 months to 12 months lo
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
UK Corporation Tax
Cuirent at 30% (31 March 2006: 30%) 96 69
Over provision in respect of previous years (45) {5)
Deferred Tax
Current Year 92 158
Priotr Year {20) {1y
Overseas Tax
Current 10 8
Deferred - {2}
133 225
9 months to 12 months o
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Profit before Tax 597 757
Taxation attributable to associates 2 3
598 760

Accounting Profit before Tax

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the (heoretical amount that would arise by applying the UK statutory tax rate to the accounting profits

of the Group:
9 months to 12 months fo
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Reconciliation of the tax charge
Tax calculated at the UK statutory rate of 30% (31 March 2006: 30%) 180 228
Adjusiments in respect of current income tax of previous years (45} (5)
Taxation attributable to associates {2) {3)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 10 8
Provision in respect of assets held for sale 10 -
Adjustments in respect of deferred income tax of previous years {20) M
133 225

The average effective tax rate was 22% (31 March 2006: 30%). The effective tax rate has reduced due to the release of corporation tax provisions in
respect of prier years no longer required (£45 million} and the recognition of capital losses arising in an earlier period {(£18 million).

7 Dividends paid and proposed

9 months to 12 manths to
31 December 2006 31 March 2008
£m £m
Equity dividends declared and paid during the year
Second interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2006 of 15.25p (Final for
year ended 31 March 2005 of 14.3p per share} 165 154
Interim dividend for the period ended 31 December 2006 of 7.0p (31 March
2008, 7.25p per share} 78 78
243 232
Equity dividend proposed for approval at the AGM
- 165

Proposed dividend for the year ended 31 March 2006 of 15.25p per share

During the period to 31 December 2006, the directors declared an interim dividend for the yvear ended 31 March 2006 of 15.25p per share (31 March
2005: final dividend 14.3p per share) that was paid on 11 August 2006 to shareholders on the register at 9 June 2006.

On 10 November 2006 the Directors declared and paid to all shareholders on the register at that date an interim dividend of £78m (7.0p per share} in

respect of the period ended 31 December 2006.
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8 Property, plant and equipment

Other Assets in the
Terminal Plant and land and course of
complexes Airfields eqguipment  buildings Rail construction Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost - Restated
Balance 1 April 2005 5,228 856 404 83 660 3,000 10,240
Additions ] - 11 1 - 1,446 1,463
Acquisition of subsidiary 95 64 174 - - 8 341
Net transfers to investment
properties 9 (41) - - - - - {41)
Transfers to completed assets 363 59 5 12 27 (466) -
Borrowing costs capitalised 5 - - - - - 151 151
Disposals (15) (3) {9) {12) - {11} (50)
Currency translation (3) {2} (8) 2 - - (9}
Balance 1 April 2006 5,632 974 579 86 687 4,137 12,095
Additions 10 2 14 - - 900 1,025
Net transfers {o investment
properties g - - - 16 - {18) {2)
Transfers to completed assels 159 23 19 - 17 (218) -
Borrowing costs capitalised 5 - - - - - 137 137
Disposals (31} {3) (32) (8) (2) (14) (90)
Currency translation 2 1 4 (2} - {1} 4
Transferred to assets held for sale 24 {99} (64) {172} - - {6} (341}
Balance 31 December 2006 5,673 933 412 92 702 5,016 12,828
Depreciation
Balance 1 April 2005 (1,629) (194) (285) (25) {141) - (2,274)
Charge (187} (30) {33} (5) {19} - (274)
Net transfers to investment
properties g 13 - - - - - 13
Disposals 13 2 5 1 - - 21
Currency translation - - (1) - - - {1)
Balance 1 April 2006 {1,790} (222} (314) (29)  (160) - (2,515)
Charge {(171) (24) (32} {5} {14) - (246)
Disposals 22 2 24 1 1 - 50
Currency translalion 1 - 1 - - - 2
Transferred to assets held for sale 24 3 - 12 - - - 15
Balance 31 December 2006 {1,935) (244) {309) (33) (173) - (2,694)
Net hook vatue 31 December 2006 3,738 689 103 59 529 5,016 10,134
Net book value 31 March 2006 3,842 752 265 57 527 4,137 9,580

Assets in the course of construction of £4,529 million (31 March 2006: £3,787 million} {excluding capitalised borrowing costs and the unwinding of the
discount on the purchase of the Thames Water land) include £3,977 million (31 March 2006: £3,348 million) in respect of Terminal 5 at Heathrow Airport.
This includes £179 million {31 March 2006: £179 million) for the acquisition of iand for the construction of Terminal 5. The operational assels employed by
the vendor of this land have been relocated and the acquisition cost represents the present value of the estimated deferred payments to be made over 35
years (from the date of acquisition) to the vendor in compensation for retocation.

Assets in the course of construction also include £101 million (31 March 2006: £68 million) in respect of the development of a second runway and related
infrastructure at Stansted Airport. The costs consist of £46 million (31 March 2006: £33 million) incurred in respect of the initial planning application
preparation and £55 million (31 March 2006: £35 million) in respect of the purchase of domestic properties that fall within the expanded airport boundary.
This includes a provision of £4 million (31 March 2006: £3 million) for the additional 10% payable under the Home Value Guarantee Scheme (HVGS)
once planning permission has been obtainad,

Other land and buildings are freehold except for certain short leasehold properties with a net book value of £21 million (31 March 20086: £22 million).

Borrowing costs capitalised
The amount of borrowing costs included in the cost of Group assets was £935 miliion (31 March 2006: £798 million). Borrowing costs were capitalised at
an average rate of 5.16% (31 March 20086: 5.26%).

A tax deduction of £137 million {31 March 2006: £142 million} for capitalised botrowing costs, excluding the unwinding of the provision for the obligation
for Terminal 5 land purchase, was taken in the year. Subsequent depreciation of the capitalised borrowing costs is disallowed for tax purposes.
Consequently, the capitalised borrowing costs gives rise to a deferred tax liability, which is released each year in line with the depreciation charged on the
relevant assets.

39




9 Investment properties

Investment Assets in the
Airport investment  properties in joint course of
properties ventures construction Total

Note £m £m £m £m
Valuation
Balance 1 April 2005 - Restated 2,610 350 78 3,038
Additions - - 27 27
Transfers to completed assets 15 - (15) -
Acquisition of subsidiary 71 - - 71
Net transfers from operational assets 8 28 - - 28
Disposals (1 - - {1}
Valuation gain 184 41 - 225
Cumrency translation 3 - - 3)
Balance 1 April 2006 2,904 391 90 3,385
Transfers to completed assets 4 - (4) -
Net transfers from operational assets 8 2 - - 2
Disposals - {22) {22)
Valuation gain 164 42 - 206
Gurrency transtafion 3 - - 3
Transfer to assets held for sale 24 {71) - - (71)
Balance 31 December 2006 3,006 411 86 3,503

Airport investment properties (excluding those acquired on the acquisition of Budapest Airport Zrt) were valued at fair value at 31 December 2008 by
Drivers Jonas, Chartered Surveyors, Strutt and Parker, Chartered Surveyors and John Arbuckle BLE (Hons), Head of BAA Professional Services. The
investment properties held by the joinl venture eniity APP were valued by King Sturge, Valuers and Surveyors., Details of the valuations petformed are

provided below:

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m

Drivers Jonas 1,984 2,926
King Sturge 325 369
Strutt & Parker 13 12
Al professional valuation 2,322 3,307
At directors' valuation 1,181 78
3,503 3,385

At 31 December 2008, the airport investment properties at directors' valuation were valued at fair value by John Arbuckle BLE (Hons), Head of BAA
Professional Services. Valuations were prepared in accardance with IFRS and the appraisal and valuation manua! issued by the Royal institution of
Chartered Surveyors. Valuations were carried oul having regard to comparable market evidence. In assessing fair value, current and potential future
income (after deduction of non-recoverable outgoings) has been capitalised using yields derived from market evidence. There were no restrictions on the

realisability or remittance of income or proceeds on disposal.

The investment properties acquired at Budapest Airport were independently valued on acquisition by Cushman and Wakefield, Chartered Surveyors,

Investment properties are let on either full repair and insuring leases, under which all outgoings are the responsibility of the lessee, or under tenancies,
where costs are recovered through a setvice charge levied on fenants during their period of occupation. This service charge amounted to £2 million (31
March 20086: £2 million) for which a similar amount is included within operating costs.

Vioid areas amounted 1o 16,907m” I the period (31 December 2006: 30,936m?) amounting to 0.53% {31 March 2006 1.35%} of the Group's investment

property portfolio.
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10 Intangible assets

Asset management
Goodwill Software costs contract Other Total

Note £m £m £m £m £m
Cost - Restated
Balance 1 April 2005 10 159 37 6 212
Additions - 27 - - 27
Acquisition of subsidiary 70 - 910 - 980
Currency transfation {1) - (28) - (30)
Balance 1 April 2006 79 186 918 6 1,189
Addifions - 14 - 1 15
Disposals {10} (36) - - {46)
Currency translafion - - 22 - 22
Transferred to assets held for sale 24 (59) - __{903) - (962)
Balance 31 December 2006 10 164 37 7 218
Amortisafion
Balance 1 April 2005 - (88) (1) - {87)
Charge for the year - (22) (3) - (25}
Balance 1 April 2006 - {108) (4} - {112)
Charge for the year - (15} {9} - (24)
Disposals - 36 - - 36
Transferred to assets held for sale 24 - - 12 - 12
Balance 31 December 2006 - {87y (1) - {88)
Net book value 31 December 2006 10 77 36 7 120
Net book value 31 March 2006 79 78 914 G 1,077

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test. Goodwill of £10 million relates to the Group’s invesiment in Societa Gestione
Servizi Aeroporti Campani (GESAC) and is allocated to the cash-generating unit {{CGU’) defined as the totality of the Group's GESAC operations (Naples
Airport). The recoverable amount of the CGL has been caiculated based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial prejections approved by management covering a five-year period.

Software costs
The capitalised computer software cosis principally relate to operating and financial software. These assets are being amortised over a period of
between three and seven years. Amortisation for the year has been charged through operating costs.

Software costs include assets in the course of construction of £40 miilion (31 March 2006: £28 million).

Asset mmanagement contract

The asset management contract includes the right to operate Budapest Airport Zrt, together with the entitlement to use certain associated assets, for a
period of 75 years from 22 December 2005, The amorfisation period is 75 years from this dale, subject 1o impairmen!. The asset management confract
has been transferred to assels held for sale as a result of the decision to seli Budapest Airport.

The remaining balance of £36 million (31 March 2006: £36 million) represents the licence to operate Perth’s airport for 50 years to 2051.

11 Investmient in associates
At 31 December 2008, the Group’s principal associate was:

% of share Country of
capital held Agctivity incorparation
Australia Pacific Airports Corporation 19.8 Holding company Australia

Australia Pacific Airports Corporation owns the licence to develop and operate Melbourne Aimport and Launceston Airport and has a reporting date of 30
June.

This investment is accounted for as an associated undertaking as the Group has significant influence over the entity through representation on the board
and management of the operation.

The summarised financial position and results of the Group's investment in associates accounted for using the equity method, is as follows:
31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m
Share of balance sheet
Nori-current assets 124 136
Current assets 10 5
Non-current liabitities (124j (126)
Current liabilities (8) 5
Net assets 2 10
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9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Share of revenue and profit
Revenue 22 30
Operating costs (10) (14)
Net finance costs %) A7
Profit before tax 7 9
Taxation {2 )]
Net profit 5 6
12 Available-for-sale investments
Restated
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Uniisted securities
Balance 1 April 2008 114 108
Additions 5 1
Acquisition of subsidiary - 3
Disposals {1} -
Revaluation surplus transferred to equity 4 2
Balance 122 114

Available for sale investments include £72 million in National Air Traffic Services Group (NATS’), the UK's national air traffic services provider. The
investment in NATS represents a 4.19% equity interest, £24 million priority loan notes repayable in 2032, yieiding a fixed interest rate of 8.5%, and £33
million undated loan notes yielding a fixed interest rale of 11.68%. The Group does not exercise significant long-term influence over NATS and
accordingly the investment has been classified as an available-for-sale investment.

The £33 miflion undated loan notes are valued as perpetual debl. The £24 million priorily foan notes are valued by discounting the interest and principal
cashflows. The equity investment is valued by discounting the forecast dividend stream and discounting an assigned terminal value to the equity in 2032.
A rate of 10.5% (31 March 2006: 10.5%) has been used as the discount factor.

Available-for-sale investments also includes —
. £40 million {31 March 2006: £40 million) representing the Group’s share of investments in various unit trusts and limited partnerships held by APP

{which are valued quarterly based on net asset value).
. £5 million {31 March 2008: £2 miilion) being the equity invesied in Northern Territory Airports. Ouring the period the investment in Advanced
Transport Systems Limited (ATS) increased by £5 million resulting in an increased total holding of 19%.

Budapest Airport disposed of its investment in ground handling operations during the period.

13 Inventories

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

Goods held for resale 23 19
Consumables 7 11
30 30

The total amount of inventeries consumed in the period was £194 million (31 March 2006: £193 million),
There is no material difference between the balance sheet vaiue of inventories and their replacement cost.

14 Trade and other receivables

Restated
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Non-current
Qlther debtors 4 8
Current
Trade debtors 219 185
Less: Provision for impairment 3) (5)
Trade debtors - net 216 180
Prepaymenis 30 21
Loan to parent 114 -
Other debtors 32 105
Total current 392 306

Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 day terms.
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15 Held-to-maturity financial assets

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m

Commercial paper - 412

No Commercial paper was held at 31 December 2006 (31 March 2006: £412m, with an average malturity of two months aming interest at an average
rate of 4.55%).

16 Cash and short-terin deposits

Restated

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 93 160
Short-term deposits - 334
93 494

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates and is subject to interest rate risk,

Short-term deposits held at 31 December 2006 totalled £nil (31 March 2006 £334 million, had an average term-to-maturity of two months and had an
effective interest raie of 4.49%). They include an amount of £nil {31 March 2006: £50 million} net cash placed on deposit for hedging purposes and which
does not meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement,

Cash at bank and in hand is subject 10 cash flow interest rate risk and shori-term deposits are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments, and comprise the following:

Restated
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand a3 180
Short-term deposits - 284
Cash and cash equivalents held by Budapest
Airport classified as held-for-sale (Note 24) a7 -
130 444
17 Borrowings
Restated
Effective 31 December 2006 31 March 2006
interest rate £m £m
Current
Unsecured
BAA Limited bonds:
7.875% £200 million due 2007 8.04% 200 200
Bank Loans Various 236 83
Total current 436 283
Non-~current
Secured
Debentures due 2017 10.25% 30 30
Bank lcans Various 204 224
Unsecured
BAA Limited honds;
3.875% €1,000 million due 2012 4.01% 670 693
5.750% £400 million due 2013 5.98% 397 397
4.500% €750 million due 2014 4.51% 508 525
11.750% £300 million due 2016 11.16% 310 311
4.500% €750 million due 2018 4.93% 501 519
8.500% £250 million due 2021 8.64% 247 247
5.125% £750 million due 2023 5.67% 738 738
6.375% £200 million due 2028 6.50% 197 197
5.750% £900 million due 2031 5.82% 898 903
Bank loans Various 415 563
5,115 5,347
Borrowings from parent
Unsecured
BAA, Limited convertible bonds:
2.940% £424 million due 2008 6.42% 424 424
2.625% £425 million due 2009 5.43% 417 409
841 833
Total non-current 5.956 6,180
Total current and non-cusrent 6,392 6,463
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The secured borrowings are secured on certain properties and are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

Current and nen-gurrent bank ioans inciude both fixed and floating interest rate ioans. The fixed rate loans have a weighted average effeclive interest rate
of 5.82% (31 March 2006: 7.79%). The interest rates on the floating rate loans are based on LIBOR plus a margin which varies between 10 and 100 basis
points. The weighted average effective interest rate on floating rate leans was 5.67% (31 March 2006: 4.67%}. The fixed rate loans are subject to fair
value interest rate risk and the floating rate loans are subject to cash flow interest rate risk.

Bonds issued under its £4.5 billion European Medium Term Note programme totalled £3,759 million (31 March 2006; £3,759 million).
During the nine months ended 31 December 2008, ADIL, the parent of BAA Limited, acquired the Group’s culstanding convertibie bonds.

The Group's £424 million 2.94% convertible bonds convert at the option of the holder into fully-paid £1 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of 800
pence per share at any time up to 28 March 2008. The Group’s £425 million 2.625% convertibie bonds convert at the option of the holder into fully-paid
£1 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of 576p per share at any lime up to 5 August 2009. Unless previously redeemed or converted, the Group
will redeem the bonds at par on 4 April 2008 and 19 August 2009 respectively.

On 23 August 2006 bondholders converted bonds with a nominal value of £375,000 into ordinary shares in BAA Limited.

Fair value of borrowings

Restaied
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Book value Fair value Book value Fair valug
Em £m Em £m
Naon-current
Long-term debt 5,115 5,320 5,347 5674
Long-term converiible debt 841 787 833 1,067
5,956 6,107 6,180 6,741

The carrying amount of short-term borrowings approximates book value.

Borrowing facilities
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 December in respect of which alt conditions precedent had been met

at that date:

31 December

2006 31 March 2006
£m £m

Fioating rate facilities
Expiring within one year - 50
Expiring between one and two years - 950
Expiring in more than two years 2,050 -
2,050 1,000

The £1 billion revolving credit facility was cancelled on 21 August 2006. BAA Limited is a joint obligor with its 100% parent ADIL to a £2.25 billion facility
maturing in April 2011. As at 31 December 2006, £200 million had been drawn on the facility,

In addition, as at 31 December 2006, overdraft facilities of £25 million (31 March 2006: £25 million) were available to the Group.
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18 Derivative financial instruments

Additional disclosures are sef out in the accounting policies relating to risk management.

Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £m
Current
Forward starting interest rate swaps - (69) (69)
Forward foreign exchange confracts 1 - 1
Electricity derivative 5 - 6
7 {69 {62}
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge - (14} (14)
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedge 9 - 9
Cross-currency swap - cash flow hedge 29 - 29
Cross-currency swap - fair value hedge 2 - 2
40 (14} 26
At 31 March 2006 47 _{83) {36)
Current
Forward starting interest rate swaps - (39) (39}
Forward foreign exchange contracts - {n {1)
Electricity derivative - {11) {11}
Interesi rate swaps 1 - 1
Cross currency swaps — cash flow hedge - ey (14)
1 {65) {64)
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedge 3 - 3
Cross-cutrency swap - cash flow hedge 4 - 4
7 - 7
At 31 December 2006 8 _(85) 57)

Net fair values of derivative financial instruments
The net fair values of derivative financial instruments and designated for cash flow hedges at the balance sheet date were:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Contracts with positive fair values
Cross currency swap 4 29
Contracts with negative fair values
Cross currency swap {14) -
Interest rate swap - (14)
{10) 15

Interest rate risk
The exposure of the Group lo interest rate changes when income eaming financial assets and interest bearing financiat liabilities either mature or reprice

is as follows:

31 December 2006

Less than one One to two Two to five Greater than
year years years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial Assets 93 4 - 236 333

31 March 2006 - Restated

Less than one One to two Two to five Greater than
year years years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial Assets 806 8 - 114 1,028

Financial assets less than one year comprise cash of £93 million {31 March 2006: £160 million). There were no short-term deposits (31 March 2006:
£334 miflion) or commercial paper (31 March 2006: £412 miltion) at 31 December 2006.

Financial assets with a maturtity of between one and two years consists of other debtors.

Financial assets greater than five years includes (i} the investment in, and tweo Joans of £24 million and £33 million made to, NATS {classified as available-
for-sale investments). The loans have effective interest rates of 8.5% and 11.68% respeciively. The £24 million loan is repayable in 2032 whilst the £33
million does not have an agreed maturity date but is repayable by NATS anyiime subject to certain conditions being met; (i) a loan from BAA Limited to
its parent company which attracts an interest rate of 5.82%. The loan matures in 2011; (i) £40 million (31 March 20086: £40 million) representing the
Group's share of investments in various unit trusts and limited partnerships held by its APP joint venture. The underlying assets have an interest rate risk.
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31 December 2006

Less than one Onetotwo  Two to five Greater than five
year years years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Total borrowings {828} {432} (431} (4,701) (6,392)
Effect of interest rate and cross
Currency swaps. (248) - - 248 -
Financial Liabilities (1,076) (432) (431} {4,453) (6,392)
31 March 2006 - Restated
Less than one Onetotwo  Two tofive Greater than five
year years years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Total borrowings (697} {7} (975) (4,784) {6,463}
Effect of interest rate and cross
currency swaps (262) - - 262 -
Financial Liabilities (959) {7) (975) (4,522) {6,463)
Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amount of the oulstanding forward starting interest rate swaps was £1,050 million (31 March 2006: £1,050 million). Thase do not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting under IAS 39 and the net fair value gain of £30 million (31 March 20086: £50 million loss) has been recognised in
the period in the income statement. The fixed interest rates vary from 5.1% to 5.3% (31 March 2006: 5.2% to 5.99%) and the floating rates are based on
six month LIBOR.

Interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of £200 million (31 March 2006: £200 million} have been entered info as a fair value hedge of existing
bonds with 2 nominal value of £200 million. A fair value loss of £6 million (31 March 2008: £1 million gain) has been recognised in the year in the income
statement, to match the fair value gain of £5 million (31 March 2006: £3 million loss) in the bonds. The fixed interest rale was 5.75% and the floating
interest rate was 5.3% (31 March 2006: 4.8%).

Interest rate swaps with a notional principal of £475 million were entered into as a cash flow hedge of the interest exposure on the €750 million bond in
conjunction with a cross currency swap (see below). For the three-month period ended 31 December 2006 the hedge relationship did not meet the criteria
to achieve hedge accounting and an £8 million gain was recognised in the income statement. The gains deferred in equity prior 1o 30 September 2006
will reverse to the income statement over the life of the bond (eight years). The fixed interest rate was 5.3% {31 March 2006: 5.2%) and the floating rate
was 5.2% (31 March 2008: 5.1%).

Cross-currency swaps

The Group has entered into three cross-currency swaps in relation to the three Euro bonds. For each swap the principal amounts exchanged were Euro
and Sterling. Under the €1 billion (£680 million) swap entered into on 15 February 2008, the Group receives Euro interest at a fixed rate of 3.9% and
pays Sterling interest at a fixed rate of 5.13%. On 15 February 2006, the Group entered into a €750 million (£510 million) swap whereby it receives Euro
interest at a fixed rate of 4.5% and pays Sterling interest at a fixed rate of 5.37%.

Both cross-currency swaps have been entered into as cash flow hedges of the currency and interest rate exposures on the €1 billion due 2012 and €750
million due 2018. The gain deferred in equity will reverse to the income statement over the life of the swaps (6 years and 12 years respectively).

In September 2004, the Group entered info a €750 million against £513 million swap. Under this swap, the Group receives Euro interest at a fixed rate of
4.5% and pays Sterfing interest at a variable rate based on LIBOR 5.1% (31 March 2006: 5.1%). For the three-month period ended 31 December 2006
the hedge relationship did not meet the criteria to achieve hedge accounting and a loss of £8 million was recognised in the income statement.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange forward and swap contracts have been entered into buying US$15 million {31 March 2006: US$26 million), €22 million (31 March 2006:
€56 million), Swiss Fr4 million {31 March 2006: Swiss Fr13 million), Polish PLN 8 million (31 March 2008: £nil} and Japanese ¥nil (31 March 2006: ¥29
millien) against Sterling. The currency forwards and swaps are used to manage exposures refating to future capital expenditure and debt raised in foreign
currency although hedge accounting is hot sought for these derivatives. The currency swaps and futures mature within two years.

Credit risk
At the balance sheet date, the book value approximates the maximum credit risk to which the Group was exposed.

Fair values of non-derivative financial instruments
Where market values are not available, fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at
prevailing interest rates and applying year-end exchange rates.

19 Fair value gains and losses on derivative financial instruments

9 months to 12 months to

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

Electricity contracts (17 5
Foreign currency contracls (4} D
Derivative (losses)/gains and in operating profit (21) 4
Cross currency and fixed to floating interest rate swaps {3) (3)
Forward starting interest rate swaps 31 50
Derivative gainsi/{losses) in finance costs 28 {53}
Total 7 {49}
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20 Deferred income tax

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows

9 months to

31 December 2006

Restated
12 months o
31 March 2006

£m £m
Balance 1 April 1,643 1,458
Acquisition of subsidiary - 3
Transfer of subsidiary to asset held for sale {30) -
Charged o income statement 72 155
Transferred to equity {1) (1)
Balance sheet reclassification 3 -
Balance 1,687 1,643
The amounts of deferred income tax provided are detailed below:
Deferred income tax liabilities
Revaluations of  Revaluations Other  Provision
Excess of Capital invesiment of Property, Fair for sale of
Allowances over property to fair Plant, and Value  overseas
Note depreciation value Equipment Items  subsidiary Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance 1 April 2005 - 681 641 151 14 37 1,524
Restated -
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - 33 - - 33
Charged/(credited) to the 128 66 - - (10) 184
Income Statement -
{Credited) to equity - - (2) - - - {2)
Balance 1 April 2006 809 707 149 47 - 27 1,739
Charged to Income Statement 12 56 - - 10 2 80
Reallecation - {15) 15 - - - -
Transfer of subsidiary to asset
held for sale 24 - - - (33) - - (33}
Balance sheet reclassification - - - - - 3
{Credited) to equity - - {3} - - - (3)
Balance 31 December 2006 821 748 161 14 10 32 1,786
Deferred income tax assets
Post
Employment  Share-based Capital IAS
Note Benefits Payments Losses 32/39 Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance 1 April 2005 62 4 - - - 66
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - 2 2
Charged to the income statement 6 5 - 16 2 29
{Charged)/credited to equity {21} 13 - 7 - {1}
Balance 1 April 2006 47 22 - 23 4 96
Transfer of subsidiary to asset held for sale 24 - - - - 3) {3)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 6 (8) 18 (8) - 8
Credited/(charged) to equity 18 14 - (6) - {2y
Balance 31 December 2006 71 - 18 9 1 99
Deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity during the year is as follows:
9 months to 12 manths to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Reserves in shareholders' equity
Cash flow hedge reserve (6) 7
Indexation - operational land 3 2
Retirement benefit obligations 18 {21)
Share-based payments {14} 13
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21 Retirement benefit obligations

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
BAA Pension Scheme 65 65
Defined contribution schemes 1 2
Additional provision for unfunded pensions 2 3
Total operating charge to staff costs 68 70
31 December 31 March
2006 20086
£m £m
BAA Pension Scheme {212) {130)
Unfunded pension obligations {n (20)
Posi-retirernent medical benefils {4) 4
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (233) {154}

{a) BAA Pension Scheme

The Group operates one main pension scheme for its UK employees, the BAA Pension Scheme, which is a funded defined benefit scheme with both
open and closed sections. The scheme's assets are held separately from the assets of the Group and are administered by trustees.

The values placed on the liabilities of the scheme as at 31 December 2006 and 31 March 2008 are based on the results of the actuarial valuation
undertaken at 30 September 2004. The liabilities have been updated by Mercer Human Resowce Consulling Limited, 1o fake account of changes in
economic and demographic assumptions, in accordance with 1AS 19, "Employee Benefiis". The plan assets are stated at their bid value at 31 December
2006 and 31 March 2006. The Group’s accounting policy is to recognise actuarial gains and losses as they oceur in the stalement of recognised income
and expense.

The financial assumptions used to calculate plan assets and liabilities under 1AS 19 are:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
% %
Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 46 4.4
Increase to deferred benefits during deferment 34 29
Increase to pensions in payment:
Open section 3.0 2.8
Closed secfion 3.4 2.9
Discount rate 5.2 50
Inflation assumption 3.1 29
Expected return on plan assets
Equities 8.0 1.2
Bonds 4.6 4.5
QOther 5.0 4.6

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pensions liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on standard actluarial mortality tables, and
include an aliowance for fulure improvements in longevity. The assumptions are equivalent to a life expectancy for a 60-year old male pensioner of 24.8
years and 25.9 years from age 60 for a 40 year old male non-pensicner. The assumptions differ from those used at 31 March 2006 when the relevant
figures were 22.7 and 24.8 respectively.

The accounting standard requires that the discount rate used be determined by reference to market yields at Ihe balance sheet date on high quality fixed
income investments, The currency and term of these should be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-employment obligations. The
discount rate has been based on the yield available on AA rated corporate bonds of a term similar to the liabilities.

The expected rate of inflation is an important building block for the salary growth and pension increase assumption. A rate of inflation is “implied” by the
difference between the yields on fixed and index-linked Govermment bonds. However, differences in demand for these can distort this implied figure. The
Bank of England target inflation rate has also been considered in sefling this assumption.

To develop the expected long-teym rate of refurn on assets assumption, the Group considered the current level of expected returns on risk free
investments (primarily government bonds) and the historical level of the risk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is
invested.

For bond investments with fixed interest rates the expected yield is derived from their market value.

In respect of the equity investments, investment returns are variable and are generally considered “riskier” investments. It is generally accepted that the
yield on equity investments contains a premium, “the equity risk premium”, to compensate investors for the additional risk of holding this type of
invesiment. There is significant uncertainty about the likely size of this risk premium. The assumption chosen is within the range of long term market
expectations.

The expected return for each asset class was then weighted, based on the target asset allocation, to develop the expected long-term rate of retum on
assets assumption for the portfolio. This resulted in the selection of a 6.8% assumption overall (31 March 2006: 6.4%).
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The amounts recognised in the income statement are as foliows:

9 months to 12 months fo
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m

Current service cost 68 73
Finance cost on benefit obligation 83 101
Expected return on plan assets (98) (115)
Pasl service cost - routine items 2 3
Past service cost - exceptional items 17 3
Total operating charge to staff costs 72 65

Analysis of the amounts recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense:

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m
Actual refum less expected return on plan assets {57) 274
Experience gains and losses arising on the benefit obligation (8) 14
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
benefit obligation 7 (216)
Actuarial {loss)gain recognised in the statement of
recognised income and expense {58) 72

The actual return on plan assets was £41 million (31 March 2006: £389 million).

In November 20086, the Trustees and the Company elected to shift the investment profile of the BAA Pension Scheme (‘the Scheme') assets from 70:30 to
4{:60 equity to gilts, effectively swapping higher risk variable retums from equities for more stable fixed retums from gilts. Rather than sell the underlying
equities and purchase gilts, the Scheme entered inio an asset swap agreement with an approved counterparty to effectively receive fixed retumns in
exchange for variable returns. At 31 December 2006 the swap was out-of-the-money by £27 million, reflecting that equities had out-performed gilts

during this period.

Effective 6 April 2006 the rules of the Scheme were amended o allow greater commutation of pension benefits to members of the fund in accordance
with changes to the applicable legislation. The rule change provides members access to their cash benefit sooner than otherwise available (at reduced
amounts reflecting the withdrawal of entitlements at an earfier date). This change allows members increased contro! over their pension benefits. The
effect of this rule change was to reduce the Scheme's liabilities by £30 miliion (pre-tax), which has been reflected in the statement of recognised income

and expense.,

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m
Fair value of plan assets
Equities 1,511 1,480
Bonds 571 567
Other 38 19
Total fair value of plan assets 2,120 2,066
Present value of benefit obligation (2,332) (2,196)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet {212) {130)

Analysis of movement in the benefit obligation:

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 2,196 1,850
Movement in the year:
Current service cost 68 73
Finance cost 83 101
Members' contributions " 13
Past service cost - routine items 2 3
Past service cost - exceplional items 17 3
Actuarial loss - 202
Benefits paid (by fund and Group) {45) (49)
Benefit obligation at end of year 2,332 2,166

The Group has reached agreement with the Trustees to contribute the lesser of £70 million per annum and the annual cost of accruing benefits (as
calculated using the FRS17 accounting standard} for a period of 5 years from mid-2006. The Group expects to contribute £70 million to its pension plan in

the year ending 31 December 2007,
Analysis of defined benefit obligation:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

Plans that are wholly or parily funded 2,332 2,196
Plans that are wholly unfunded 2 24
Total 2,353 2,220
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Movements in the fair value of plan assets were as follows:

31 December 2606 31 March 2006
£m £m
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 2,066 1,668
Expected return on plan assels 98 115
Actuarial {loss)/gain {58} 274
Employer contributions (including benefits paid and reimbursed) 48 45
fMembers’ coniributions M 13
Benefits paid {by fund and Group) {45) {49)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 2,120 2,066
History of experience galns and losses:
31 December 2006 31 March 2008
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme
assets:
Amount £m (57} 274
Percentage of scheme assets (27) 13.3
Experience gains and losses on benefits obligations:
Amount £m {8) 14
Percentage of scheme liabilities {0.3) 0.6
Total amount recognised in the statement of recognised
income and expense:
Amount £m (58) 72
Percentage of benefit obligation {2.4) 3.3

{b) Other pension and post-retirement liabilities

The Group provides unfunded pensions in respect of directors and senior employees whose benefits are restricted by the BAA Pension Scheme rules.
The cost of these arrangements expenses against operating profit in the period was £2 million (31 March 2006: £3 million).

The Group provides post-retirement medical benefits to certain pensioners. The present value of the fulure liabilities under this arrangement have been
assessed by the actuary and this amount of £4 million (31 March 2006: £4 million) is included in the balance sheet, along with provision for unfunded
pension obligations of £17 miliion {31 March 2008: £20 million).

The value of unfunded pensions has been assessed by the actuary using the same assumptions as those used to calculate the pension scheme liabilities
except that salary increases have been assumed to be 5.6% per annum {31 March 2006: 5.4%).

The Group also has defined contribution schemes in respect of employees of World Duty Free Eurape Limited, Heathrow Express Operating Company
Limited and BAA Business Support Centre Limited. The total cost of defined contribution arrangements fully expensed against operating profit in the
period is £1 million (31 March 2006: £2 million).

22 Provisions

Disposal of Obligations under
operations’ Reorganisation” land purchase® Other Total
Em £m £m £m £m
Balance 1 April 2006 8 45 108 1 170
Utilised - (23) (14) (1) (38}
Capital items - - - 1 1
Charged to income stalement - 17 - - 17
Unwinding of discount charged
and capitalised - - 3 - 3
Transferred to assets held for
sale (Note 24) - - - N {7
Balange 31 Decemfer 2006 8 39 95 4 146
Current 5 39 7 - 51
Neon-current 3 - 88 4 95
Balance 31 December 2006 8 39 95 4 146
Current - 44 19 - 63
Non-current 8 1 87 11 107
Balance 31 March 2006 8 45 106 11 170

* Provision carried forward relates to outstanding liabilities in respect of businesses disposed in prior years, including guarantees expiring between 2007
and 2011, which remain in place following the sale of World Duty Free Americas, inc.

2 The Group continues to implement initiatives under the change programme, Delivering Excellence.

50




® Provision refafes to the acquisition of land for the construction of Terminal 5. The operational assets employed by the vendor of this land have been
relocated, and provision has been made for the present value of the estimated paymenis to be made over the next 30 years to the vendor in
compensation for this. The provision of £85 million {31 March 2006: £106 million), net of discount, is expected to be utilised according to the following

profile:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

Within ane year 7 19
One to two years 3 3
Two to five years 13 12
Five to ten years 28 28
Over ten years 44 44
95 106

4 The opening balance includes £8 million of provisions acquired or set up on the acquisiﬁon of Budapest Airport Zrt in relation to legal and other claims.
Of this, £1 millicn was utilised in the period, with the balance of £7 million transferred to ‘assets held for sale’. In addition, a provision of £4 million is
held for the additional 10% payment due under a compensation scheme {once planning permission has been obtained) for the second runway and

related infrastructure at Stansted Airport.

23 Trade and other payables

Restated
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Non-current
QOther creditors 8 87
Deferred income 14 16
22 83
Current
Trade creditors 169 194
Other tax and social security 13 12
Other creditors 137 132
Capital creditors 272 324
Interest creditor 133 61
724 723

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day terms.

24 Assets held for sale
The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the operations classified as assets held for sale are as foliows:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Note Em £m
Goodwill 10 59 -
Intangible assets 10 891 -
Property, plant and equipment 8 326 -
Investiment property 9 71 -
Inventories 7 -
Trade and other receivables 68 -
Derivative financial instruments 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents 37 -
Total assets classified as held for
Sale 1,460 -
Trade and other payables {88) -
Deferred tax liabilities 20 (30) -
Provisions 22 7 -
Total habilities classified as held for
sale {125) -
Net assets of disposal group 1,335 -

BAA entered into a Memorandum of Understanding during Cctober 2006 with the Hochtief Consortium to purchase Budapest Airport Zrt, BAA’s subsidiary
company which owns Budapest airport. BAA considers that the transaction satisfies the requirements of IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’. As a consequence, assets and liabilities of Budapest Airport have been reclassified as held-for-sale. No significant profit or loss

is expected to be realised on the sale.
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25 Share capital
£

Authorised
1,300,000,000 crdinary shares of £1 each 1,300,000,000
Balance at 1 April 2006 and 31 December 2006 1,300,000,000
Aliotted and fully paid
In issue at 1 Aprit 2006 1,080,361,331 ordinary shares of £1 each 1,080,361,331
Issue of ordinary shares of £1 each under the share and share

option schemes and plans 22,038,984
In issue at 31 December 2006: 1,102,400,315 ordinary shares 1,102,400,315
of £1 each

On 28 June 2006, ADIL, announced that the offers to acquire all of the capital issued and fo be issued by BAA plc and all the bonds that were convertible
into shares of BAA (the offers’) had become unconditional. On safisfying the conditions of the offers, ADIL, under the London Stock Exchange {('LSE’)
listing rules, and subject to certain other conditions, could compulsorily acquire the remaining shares and convertible bonds of BAA on issue.

On 10 July 2006, ADI announced via the LSE Regulatory Information System that it and BAA had commenced the proceedings necessary to delist BAA's
shares and convertible bonds of BAA in accordance with the applicable regulations. On 11 July 2006, an announcement in this respect was published in
the UK edition of the Financial Times, from which date there was a delisting period of 20 business days. Delisting was official on 15 August 2006 and the
Company changed its status from a plc to a private (Limited) company.

The ultimate parent company of ADIL in the UK is FGP Topeo Limited, a company owned by Ferrovial Infraestructuras, S.A. (62%), Caisse de depot et
placement du Quebec (28%), and Baker Street Investment Ple Ltd (10%).

Share options

As at 31 December 2006, there were no options granted to directors and staff remaining outstanding:

Number of ordinary shares of £1 each

Period of exercise Option price 31 December 2006 31 March 2006
BAA 1996 Share Option Scheme
24 June 2000 - 23 Jure 2007 537.5p - 121,515
11 November 2000 — 10 November 2007 511.0p - 25,380
26 June 2001 25 June 2008 665.5p - 929,345
3 November 2001- 2 November 2008 668.0p - 98,350
24 June 2002 - 23 June 2009 641.0p - 1,153,719
28 November 2002 — 28 November 2009 454 5p - 452 604
30 June 2003 - 29 June 2010 510.0p - 741,204
1November 2003 — 31 Cctober 2010 573.0p - 715,767
20 June 2004 - 19 June 2011 632.5p - 831,832
28 November 2004 — 27 November 2011 587.0p « 1,080,930
26 June 2005 — 25 June 2012 597.5p - 1,026,154
2 December 2005 - 1 December 2012 524.0p - 1,133,923
24 June 2006 — 23 June 2013 495.0p - 1,797 471
10 November 2006 — 9 Movember 2013 476.0p - 2,122,876
Sharesave Schemes
1 February 2006 — 31 July 2006 459.0p - 44177
1 February 2005 — 31 July 2005, and

1 February 2007 — 31 July 2007 445.0p - 1,369,307
1 February 2006 — 31 July 2006, and

1 February 2008 — 31 July 2008 452.0p - 1,352,702
1 February 2007 — 31July 2007, and

1 February 2009 — 31 July 2009 382.0p - 5,192,086
1 February 2008 — 31 July 2008, and

1 February 2010 — 31 July 2010 481.0p - 4,032,854
1 February 2009 — 31 July 2008, and

1 February 2011 — 31 July 2011 496.0p - 3,557,049
Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme
1 August 2003 — 31 July 2010 0.0p - 13,682
30 July 2004 — 29 July 2011 0.0p - 41,250
31 July 2005 - 30 July 2012 0.0p - 5,661
31 July 2005 - 31 August 2006 0.0p - 604
1 January 2006 - 29 January 2007 0.0p - 1,879
1 January 2006 - 7 February 2008 0.0p - 3,864
2 March 2006 - 29 January 2007 0.0p - 11,593
2 March 2006 - 4 February 2008 0.0p - 11,940

- 27,880,717
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Share awards

As at 31 December 20086, there were no contingent share awards granted to directors and staff remaining outstanding.

Number of ordinary shares of £1 each

Normal Release date Option Price 31 December 2006 31 Margh 2006

Performance Share Plan

18 June 2007 550.8p - 2,107,293

18 June 2007 586.3p - 138,942

20 June 2008 607.7p . 2,276,097

20 June 2008 633.2p - 219,023

Deferred Annual Bonus 2005 Scheme

15 August 2008 606.8p - 233,394

Special Share Award

12 September 2008 622.2p - 8,036
- 4,982,785

26 Share premium

£m
Balance 1 Aprit 2005 228
Premium on shares issued 17
Balance 1 April 2006 245
Premium on shares issued 80
Balance 31 December 2006 325

27 Own shares held

£m
Balance 1 April 2005 {29)
Disposals (exercised options) 25
Balance 1 April 2006 (4)
Disposals (exercised options) 4

Balance 31 December 2606 -

The BAA Employee Share Trusi (‘the BEST') was established to enable the Group fo co-ordinate and manage the funding and delivery of shares to
employees who exercised options or received shares under its employee share schemes.

The BEST was a discretionary trust established for the benefit of all employees. The Trustee of the BEST was an independent trust company hased in
Jersey, Historically, the Trustee purchased the Company’s ordinary shares in the open market with financing provided by the Company, as retuired, on
the basis of regular reviews of the anticipated share liabilities of the Group. During the year, the Board decided that no further shares would be purchased

for these liabilities.

Since the 100% acquisition of BAA by the Ferrovial Consortium in June 2006, ne company owned shares have been held.

28 Revaluation reserve

£m
Balance 1 April 2005 389
Realisation of reserve (1
Balance 1 April 2006 and 31 December 2006 358

The revalualion reserve refates to the historic revaiuation of operational assets that have since been reclassified (o investment properties. Current

revaluations of investment properties are included in the income statement.
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29 Fair value and other reserves

Equity Cashfiow Available for Currency Capital
option Hedge sale Translation Redemption
Reserve Reserve Investments Reserve Reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 April 2005 65 3 {1 1 27 95
Cash flow hedges:
Fair value (losses)/gains - (2) 2 - - -
Transferred to income statement - (33) - - {33)
Deferred tax on fair value losses - 7 - - - 7
Current tax on fair value losses/(gains) - 3 (1) - - 2
Currency transiation - - - (41) - {41)
Balance af 1 April 2006 65 (22} - {40) 27 30
Cash flow hedges:
Fair value (losses)gains - (30} 4 - - (26)
Transferred to income statement - 58 - - - 58
Deferred tax on fair value gains - 6) - - - (6)
Current tax on fair value losses/gains - {2) (M - - (3)
Currency translation - - 31 - 31
Balance at 31 December 2006 85 (2) 3 (9) 27 84

The amount of £58 million transferred to the income statement represents the gain on revaluation of mark-to-market cross-currency swaps.

30 Retained earnings

£m
Balance 1 April 2005 3,864
Dividends paid {232)
Net profit for the year 531
Share-based payments 26
Actuarial gain on pensions 72
Tax on actuarial gain on pensions (21)
Tax on items taken to equity 2
Realisation of reserves 1
Balance at 1 April 2006 4,243
Dividends paid (243)
Net profit for the year 463
Share-based payments 16
Acfuarial loss on pensions (58)
Tax on actuarial loss on pensions 18
Tax on items taken to equity 1
Balance at 31 December 2006 4,440

31 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments — Group as a lessee

Total future minimum rentals payable as at the period end are as follows:
31 December 2008

31 March 2006

Land and Land and
huildings Other buildings  Other
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 26 47 24 47
Within two to five years 79 179 80 179
After five years 127 2,720 144 2,753
232 2,946 248 2,979

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms, escalation clauses

and renewable rights. The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancelable operating leases.

The significant portion of the £2.9 billion operating lease commitments classified as ‘other’ is electricity supply equipment at the airports leased under a
75-year agreement with London Electricity Supply.




NIk

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments —~ Group as a lessor

Tota) future minimum rentals receivable as at the period end are as follows:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings  Other
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 109 9 115 g
Within two to five years 317 2 201 9
After five years 548 - 569 -
974 11 975 18

The Group uses a number of different leasing and contractual structures depending on the type and location of the investment property. Typicatly in multi-
let offices and industrial premises a standard indefinite tenancy is used, which is determinable by the tenant on three months notice at any time. However,
it is common for the accommodation to remain let or be quickly re-lfet should it be vacated. For (arger, stand alone premises, e.g. cargo sheds, lfonger

leases of multiples of three years are used.

Public car parks and car rental facilities are operated under concession agreements subject to minimum guaranteed payments, the amounts for which are
included above.

Group commitments for property, plant and equipment

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Contracted for, but not accrued:

Terminal 5, Heathrow Airport 108 355
Property, plant and eguipment at Budapest Airport 174 181
Multi-storey car park 1 refurbishment, Heathrow Airport - 1
A380 preparatory works, Heathrow Airport 2 -
Multi-storey car park new build, Heathrow Alrport - 4]
Terminal 4 fire alarms, Heathrow Airport 1 6
Runway, Slansted Airport - 10
Cul de sac, Stansted Airport - 5
285 564

Other projects 75 58
360 622

The White Paper sets out the Government's policy for runway development in the UK. The Govemment chose a second runway at Stansted as its
preferred location for the first new runway in the South East of England. As the development of Stansted wilt be the subject of a planning inquiry, the
Group is pressing ahead with the necessary preparation of a planning application and environmental impact assessment. The anticipated costs of
preparing for and understaking the planning application are approximately £66 million to 31 March 2008. These costs are being capitalised as part of the
runway and infrastructure deveiopment cosls (as detailed in Note 8). Total costs incurred to 31 December 2006 are £46 miflion (31 March 2006: £33
million}.

As part of its commitment to the Stansted development, the Group is operating three voluntary blight schemes (the Home Value Guarantee Scheme
{HVGS), the Home Qwners Support Scheme and the Special Cases Scheme) for those people most affected by the airport expansion. The current
estimate of the net cost of the blight and compensation schemes is up to £100 millicn {with approximately £69 million being incurred in this regulatory
period). These costs are being capilalised as part of the runway development costs (as detailed in Note 8). Total value to 31 December 2006 is £55
million {31 March 2008: £35 million), including a £4 million provision for the additional 10% payment due under the HVGS blight scheme once planning
permission has been obtained for the second runway at Stansted.

The White Paper also commits the Group {and other airport operators) to offering noise mitigation measures for existing airports and voluntary blight
schemes for future airport activity at the larger UK airports (those with more than 50,000 air traffic movements a year). The Group carried out a detailed
examination of these White Paper provisions and consutted extensively with local communities at its airporis on the implementation of potential schemes.
Based on the Group's evaluation, payments under the noise schemes are eslimated at £7 million per annum for the next four years and up to £350 million

over the next 29 years for blight schemes.

In June 2006, the Government announced it's conclusions for the 2006-2012 night flights regime at BAA's London airports. The regime commits BAA to
introducing a new domestic noise insulation scheme to address the impact of night flights on local communities. Based on the Group's evaluation,
payments under this scheme are estimated to total £70 million, spread over the five year period commencing 2008,

Contingent liabilities
The Group has contingent liabilities, comprising letters of credit, performance/surety bonds, performance guarantees and other items arising in the nommal
course of business amounting to £192 million at 31 December 2006 (31 March 2006: £198 million). Included in the above are the following:

{iy The Company has provided a limited guarantee o Indianapolis Airport Authority {IAA), supported by a US$50 million letter of credit, to guarantee its
obligations under the 13-year management contract with 1AA which expires on 31 December 2008.

(i) tn July 1998, the Cormpany and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Heathrow Airport Limited, entered into a cross-border lease and leaseback in relation to
the Heathrow Express rolling stock owned by Heathrow Airport Limited. The Company and Heathrow Airport Limited guarantee payments that are
defeased by a deposit of US$59.4 million with Rahobank and US$15 million in US Government securities. In addition, they guarantee early
termination payments. The amount payable under this guarantee at 31 December 2006 was US$14.5 million.

{ili} The Company has provided parent guaraniees in respect of €75 million as security for the development commitments of Budapest Airport Zrt and €10
million as a performance guarantee related 1o a petential acquisition that did not proceed. This latter guarantee has been cancelled since 10 January

2007.
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(iv) Holders of US$109 million of bonds of World Duty Free Americas, Inc. (now known as DFA Inc.), sold in Qctober 2001, issued proceedings against
BAA Limited {formerly BAA ple}, World Duty Free plc and the purchaser of DFA Inc. in May 2002 claiming the defendants had fraudulently conveyed
the assets of DFA Inc. The plaintiffs’ remaining claim is for US$39 million and punilive damages of the same amount. A trial in December 2003
found BAA Limited and World Duty Free pic not liable to the bohd holders on all counts. The WDFA bondholders appeal on two points of law was
heard in November 2004 and reheard in October 2005, The Court hearing the appeal found for the plaintiffs on both points of law and ordered the
case to be sent back to the Court of First Instance. BAA Limited appealed to the Court of Appeal which is the supreme court for the State of
Maryland and a hearing took place in October 2006. The decision is still awaited. The board remains confident of a successful outcome.

{v) On 22nd December Wallis ingatlan Zrt ("Wallis'}, a Hungarian property company issued proceedings in the Budapest metropolitan court against BA
Zrt claiming that an agreement had been concluded establishing a partnership between Wallis and BA Zrt in relation to real estate development at
Budapest Airport which BA Zrt by its actions had rendered impossible to perform. Wallis seek either a declaration that they jointly own certain real
estate at the airport or a ruling that they are entitled to compensation in the sum of ten tillion HUF and interest. The Company has been advised that
the claim is without merit and it will be vigorously defended.

(vi}) Pursuant to the terms of the ADIL Senior Finance Documents and the ADIL Junior Finance Documents, BAA Limited, as an obligor, jointly and
severally guarantees the Senior and Subordinated facilities with all other obligors up to a maximum value that shall be no greater than the aggregate
amount such as would not cause the financial and other covenants contained in the Existing Bonds to be breached.

The other obligors are BAA Partnership Limited, BAA (internationat Holdings} Limited, London Airports Limited, Gatwick Afrport Limitad, Heathtow
Airport Limited, Stansted Airport Limited, London Airports 1992 Limited, London Airports 1993 Limited, Scottish Airports Limited, World Duty Free
Limited and World Duty Free (Europe) Limited.

32 Share-based payments

The Group recognised a total expense, within staff costs, in relalion to share based payments of £5 million (31 March 2006 £13 miflion ) which relates to
equity settied schemes.

Following the 100% acquisition of BAA by the Ferrovial Consortium in June 2006, all share awards were exercised.
The schemes in operation during the period were as foliows.

Performance Share Plan (‘PSP’)
The final award under the PSP was made on 30 November 2005. The PSP provided for the grant of free shares in the form of contingent shares.

Shares in relation to the awards were held in trust and would have been released to participants at the end of a 3-year performance period, dependent
upon the extent to which the perfomance condition was satisfied. Following the change of control, a portion of the outstanding PSP awards vested
immediately and the remaining PSP awards lapsed. The awards vested on a pro-rata basis to reflect the extent to which the vesting period had elapsed
and the performance condition was satisfied.

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP were calculated using the market value of shares adjusted to take into account the Total Shareholder
Return {TSR’) market-based performance condition, using a pricing model. The model took into account the interdependency between share price
performance and TSR vesting. The mode! incorporated expectations about volatility and the correlation of share price returns of BAA plc to a defined
comparator group.

Expected volatility was determined based on the median historical volatility of the share price of the comparater group over three years to the grant date.

Expected share price correfation was determined based on the median historic comelation between the constituents of the comparator group measured
over 3 years to the grant date,

No PSP awards were granted during the period. The inputs into the pricing model for the PSP awards granted in the prior year were as follows:

31 March 2006
20 June 2005 30 November 2005

Weighted average share price £6.07 £6.36
Expected volatility 25% 21%
Expected life 36 months 31 months
Correlation of share price retumns 30% 25%

The Group recognised a total expense in relation to PSP awards of £1.6 million (31 March 2006: £5 million).
Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme {'DAB'}

The final award under the DAB was made in August 2005, Under the DAB, participants were given the chaice to defer a portion of their annual bonus into
the Company's shares for 3 years. The DAB was equity settied and participants received an award of free matching shares at the end of the deferral
period. Following the change of conirel the DAB awards granted in 2003 and 2004 vested in full, the awards granted in 2005 vested on a pro-rata basis
to reflect the extent to which the vesting period had elapsed, and the performance condition was salisfied.

The fair value of matching shares awarded under the DAB was based on the market value of the shares on the grant date.
The Group recognised a total expense in relation to DAB awards of £0.5 million (31 March 2006: £1 million).

Sharesave Scheme

The final award under the Sharesave Scheme was made on 30 November 2005. Under the Sharesave Scheme, HM Revenue and Customs approved
and un-approved awards were made. The Sharesave Scheme awards were equity setfled and based on a 3 or 5 year monthly savings contract,
Participants were granted share options with an exercise price at a 20% discount to the average quoted market price of BAA plc shares with a vesting
period of either 3 years or 5 years. Foifowing the change of controf the Sharesave Scheme awards vested (o the exient to which the savings contract had
been completed, therefore the vesting of awards was effectively pro-rated for time.

56




31 December 2006

31 March 2006

Weighted average Weighted average
exercise price exercise price
Options {in £} Options (in £}

Outstanding at beginning of period 15,549,075 4.40 15,505,483 4.28
Granted during the period - - 3,602,849 4.96
Forfeited during the period (79,485) 4.60 (1,283,874} 4.28
Expired during the period (8,115,631) 4.40 - -
Exercised during the period (7,353,959) 4.40 (2,275,413) 4.49
Qutstanding at the end of the period - - 15,549,075 4.40
Exercisable at the end of the period - - 1,411,976 4.45

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for Sharesave options exercised during the period was £9.35.

The fair value of the Sharesave awards was measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The model takes into account expectations about volatility,

dividends and the life of the awards.

No Sharesave awards were granted during the period. The inputs into the Black-Scholes model for awards granted in the prior year {on 2 December 2005

under bath the 38-month and 62-month schemes) are as follows:

2 Decetnber 2005

2 December 2005

(38 months) (62 months)
Share price £6.20 £6.20
Exercise price £4.96 £4.96
Expected volatility 19% 24%
Risk free rate 4.32% 4.30%
Expected dividends 4.50% 4.50%

Expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of the BAA plc share price. This reflects the assumption that historical volatility is indicative of

future trends which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The Group recognised a total expense in relation to the Sharesave Scheme of £2.5 million (31 March 2006: £5 miilion}.

Executive Share Option Scheme — The BAA 1296 Share Option Scheme (‘ES08’)

The ESQS was replaced by the PSP in 2004 and no awards have been made under the ESQOS since November 2003. Under the ESOS, options were
granted with an exercise price equal fo the average market price of BAA plc shares on the date of grant. The options were equity settfed and became
exercisable at the end of a 3-year performance period, dependent upon the extent to which the performance condition had heen satisfied. All of the

outstanding ESOS options vested upon the change of control.

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

Weighted average Weighted average
exercise price exercise price
Options (in £) Qptions (ing)
Qutstanding at beginning of period 12,241,179 5.53 18,588,103 5.56
Forfeited during the period - - (216,004) 5.38
Expired during the period - - (270,864) 6.39
Exercised during the period (12,241,179) 5.53 (5.859,968) 6.57
Outstanding at the end of the period - - 12,241,179 5.53
Exercisable at the end of the period - - 8,320,832 5.85
The weighted average share price al the date of exercise for ESOS options exercised during the year was £0.35.

The fair value of the ESOS awards were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model.
The Group recognised a total expense in relation to ESOS of £0.7 million (31 March 2008: £2 million).

One-off share award

A one-off award of 8,036 free shares was made in the twelve months to 31 March 2006 with a three year vesting peried. Following the change of control

the award vested pro-rated for time,

Summary of awards outstanding at 31 December 2006
There were no share awards outstanding as at 31 December 2006,

Summary of fair values

There were no share awards granted during the financial period. The weighted average fair values for PSP awards, DAB awards, and one-off share

awards and Sharesave grants during the previous financial year are as follows:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

PSP - £3.41
DAB - £6.06
Sharesave - 3 year expected life - £1.48
Sharesave - 5 year expected life - £1.85
One-off share award - £6.23
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33 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of net profit before tax to cash generated from operations
Reslated

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 31 March

2006 2006
Note £m £m
Operating activities
Net profit before tax 597 757
Adjustments for:
Finance income 5 {24) (44)
Finance costs 5 162 166
Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative financial instruments 19 (7} 49
Depreciation’ 8 229 274
Amortisation 10 24 25
Loss/{profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 {4) (3
Exceptional profit on disposal of property related assets 2 2 (41)
Exceptional costs 34 80
Fair value gains on investment properties g {206} (225}
Share-based payments expense 2 5 13
Share of profil of associates (net of interest and tax) 11 {5} (6)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (41) (13)
increase in Inventories (7} (3)
Decrease in fratie and other payables - (26)
Decrease in provisions 7 (39)
Increase in retirement benefit obligations 9 22
Cash generated from operations 771 936
T Excludes Terminal 2 accelerated depreciation included within exceptional items.
{b} Financing
9months to 12 months to
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£m £m
fssue of ordinary share capital 102 21
Sale of own shares by the BEST - 18
Dividends paid to sharehclders (243) (231)
Repayment of forward starting interest rate swaps - {28}
Borrowings
Cuirent:
Proceeds released from bank revolving credit facility (198) 1,280
Repayment of bank revoiving credit facifity 2060 (1,290)
{Decrease)fincrease in other borrowings - {91)
Non-current:
Proceeds received from issue of 4.5% €750 million bonds due 2018 - 510
Proceeds received from issue of 5.125% €750 million bonds due 2023 - 750
Proceeds received from issue of 3.875% €1 billion due 2012 - 680
Increase in other borrowings - 68
(139) 1,697
34 Related party transactions
During the year the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Sale of goods and services Sale of goods and services
£m £m
Malev Rt 24 9
Airport Property Partnership 5 5
Australia Pagcific Airports Corporation - 11
Swissport/Groundstar 2 -
Qther 2 1
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Baiances outstanding with refated parties were as follows

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Amounts owed from Amounts owed te  Amounts owed from Amounts owed to
related parties related parties related parties related parties
£m £m £m £m
Malev Rt 24 2 2 3
Airport Property Partnership 3 - 2 -
Australia Pacific Airports Corporation 1 - 5 -
Ferrovial Infraestructuras, S.A. - 1 - -
Swissport/Groundstar 1 - - -
29 3 3

Apart from transactions related to commercial activities, the Group also has transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with the fiscal authorities in
Hungary.

ADIL (BAA's parent entity} owns £424 million 2.94% and £425 million 2.625% convertible bonds in BAA Limited. Further details of these bonds are
shown in Note 17.

The immediately parent entity of BAA is ADIL, the UK parent entity is FGP Topco Limited, and the ultimate parent entity is Grupe Ferrovial, S.A. {Spain).

35 Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures

Subsidiaries
The principal subsidiaries whose financial position materially affect the Group are as follows:
Airport owners and operators Duty-free retailing
Heathrow Airport Limitedt Aberdeen Airport Limited+ World Duty Free
Gatwick Airport Limitedt Southampton International Airport Limitedt Europe Limitedt

Stansted Airport Limitedt Societa Geslione Servizi Aeroporti Campanii™ (65% holding)
Glasgow Airport Limitedt Budapest Alrport Zrt*(75% -1 vote share holding)
Edinburgh Airport Limitedt

T Held by a subsidiary undertaking
* Incorporated in italy
* Incorporated in Hungary

Unless otherwise indicaled, all subsidiaries are wholly owned and are incorporated and operate in Great Britain. A complete list of subsidiaries will be
annexed to the nexi annual return delivered to the Regisirar of Companies.

As described in Note 31, the Company and Heathrow Airport Limited have entered into a cross-border lease and lasaseback establishing a special
purpose vehicle, Paddington Railcars Company Limited ('PRC'), t¢ act as an intermediate entity under the various lease agreements. Since the activities
of PRC are effectively under the direct control of Heathrow Airport Limited under the terms of the lease agreement, PRC is deemed a quasi-subsidiary of
the Company and iis profit, assets, liabilities and cash flows have bean consolidated inte the Group.

Joint ventures
At 31 December 2006, the Group's principal joint ventures (both of which are unlisted) were:
% of share Country of
capital held Activity  ingorporation
Property development
Alrport Property Partnership (‘APP") 50 and management Great Britain
Airgtralia Development Group Pty Limited 15 Holding company Australia

APP has a 31 December reporting date and Airstralia Development Group Pty Limited has a 30 June reporting date.

These investments are accounted for as joint ventures as the Group has joint control of these entities through its agresments with the other joint venture
parties.

APP is tax transparent’, and the liability for tax on APP's underlying profits rests with APP's invesiors. The Group's share of APP’s tax charge and
liahilities is reflecied as part of the Group’s fax charge and balance sheef tax position.

Airstrafia Development Group Pty Limiled holds a 100% interest in Westralia Airports Corporation Pty fLimited, an Australian registered wholly owned
subsidiary underiaking that manages Perth Inlernational Airport.

The summarised financial position and results of the Group's investment in joint ventures, accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method, is
as follows:
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31 December 2006

31 March 20086

£m £m
Share of balance sheet
Non-current assets 504 482
Current assels 13 24
Non-current liabilities (220) (238)
Current liabilities {19} (20}
Net assets 278 248
9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
Share of revenue and profit
Revenue 28 38
Operating costs (12} (12)
Fair value gain on investment properties 42 41
Net finance costs {10) (13)
Net profit before and after tax 48 54
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of BAA Limited

We have audited the parent company financial statements of BAA Limited for the nine month pericd ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the
balance sheet and the related notes. These parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of BAA Limited for the nine month pericd ended 31 December 2006.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards [United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Direclors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and requlatoty requirements and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland}. This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any cther person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
cohsent in writing.

We repart to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent company financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Caompanies Act 1885. We aiso report to you whether in our opinion the information given
in the Report of the Birectors is consistent with the parent company financial statements. The information given in the Report of the Directors includes that
specific information presented in the Business Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Repont of the Directors.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Repart and consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent company financial statements.
The other information comprises only the Report of the Directors and the Business Review. We consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements. Our responsibifities do not extend fo any
other information.

Basis of audit opinicn

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with Infernational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circurnstances, consisiently applied and adequately disciosed.

We planned and performed our audif s0 as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order 1o provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial siatements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. in forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company
financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion:

The parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the
state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 20086;

The parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

The infarmation given in the Repart of Directors is consistent with the parent company financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chariered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Londen

26 February 2007
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Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2006

31 December 31 March
20606 2006
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2 L] 9
Investment in subsidiaries 3 11,238 10,886
Investment in joint ventures 3 2 2
Available-for-saie investments 4 72 68
Derivative financial instruments 10 7 40
11,330 11,005
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 7,066 6,627
Held-to-maturity financial assets 6 - 412
Derivative financial instruments 10 1 7
Cash and short-ferm deposits 7 54 444
7421 7,490
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables g {5,719} (6,232}
Borrowings 9 {434) (282)
Derivative financial instruments 10 (65) (69)
Net current assets 903 907
Total assets less current liabilities 12,233 11,912
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade and other payables 8 (2) {2}
Borrowings 9 (5,717) (5.797)
Derivative financial instruments 10 - (14
(5.719) {5.813)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Other provisions 11 {3) (3)
Net assets excluding pension and other post-retirement fiabilities 6,511 6,096
Pension and other post-retirement liabilities (net of deferred tax) 12 _{160) _ {104}
Net assets including pension and other post-retirement liahilities 6,351 5,982
Capital and reserves
Calfed up shate capital 13 1,102 1,680
Share premium 14 325 245
Own shares held 15 - (4)
Revaluation reserve 16 3,375 2,722
Fair value and other reserves 17 93 70
Profit and loss account 18 1,456 1,879
Equity shareholders’ funds 6,351 5,892

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authorised for issue on 26 February 2007 and signed on behalf of the Board.

it Nl

Ste n)N son
Chief Exectitive

Chief Financial Officer
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Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Company financia! statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for available-for-sale assets, derivative financial instrumenis
and financial liabilities that qualify as hedged items under a fair value hedge accounting system, and in accordance with all applicable United Kingdom
Accounting Standards. These exceptions to the historic cost convention have been measured at fair value as pemitted by the Fair Value Directive as
implemented in the amended Companies Act 1985.

The Company has not presented a cash flow statement or provided details of related pariy transactions as permitied under FRS 1 {revised) ‘Cash Flow
Statements’ and FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ respectively.

Revenue
Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with FRS 5, ‘Reporting the substance of transactions’ net of VAT, and comprises the recovery
of costs from Group entities.

Interest

Interest payable is charged as incurred except where the borrowing finances tangible fixed assets in the course of construction. Such interest is
capitatised once planning permission has been obtained and/or where projects are in the early stages of planning but the directors are satisfied that the
necessary consents will be received. The interest is then charged to the profit and loss account as depreciation over the life of the relevant asset. All
costs incurred directly in connection with the issue of debt are deducted from the proceeds and the net amount included in liabilities. Such costs, fogether
with any premium or discount on issue, are credited/charged to the profit and loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying
arnount of the liability.

Tangible fixed assets

Operational assets

Plant and equipment and land and buildings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Assets in the course of construction
are stated at cost fess provision for impairment. Assels in the course of construction are transferred to completed assets when substantiaily all the
activities necessary 1o gel the asset ready for use are complete. Where appropriate, cost includes interest capitalised, own labour costs of construction-
related project management and directly attributable overheads.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on cperational assets, other than land, fo write off the cost of the assets less estimated residual value, by equal instalments over
their expected useful lives as set out below:

Fixed asset lives
Plant and equipment

Motor vehicles 4 — 8 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equiprnent 4 -5Svyears
Computer software 3-7 years
Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings, are stated at net asset value {as determined for the Group under International Financial Reporting Standards)
and reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the carrying value may not be recaverable.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings includes interest free loans to subsidiaries, that have no fixed repayment date.

Deferred taxation

In accordance with FRS 19, 'Deferred tax’ deferred tax is provided in full on timing differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay
more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected fo apply when the obligation crystallises, based on current tax rates and law. Timing
differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are included
in financial statements. Deferred tax is not provided on timing differences arising from the revaluation of investment properties where there is no
commitment i sell the asset, or on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries, associates and joint veniures where there is no commitment to remit these
earnings.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as mare likely than nat that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are not discounted.

Employee benefits

Pension costs

The Company's UK pension fund is a self administered defined benefit scheme. In accordance with FRS 17, ‘Retirement benefits’ the service cost of
pension provision relating to the period, together with the cost of any benefits relating tu past service, is charged to the profit and loss account. A charge
equal to the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilifies (because the benefits are closer to settlement) and a credit equivalent to the
Company's long-term expected return on assets {based on the market value of the scheme assets af the start of the period) are included in the profit and
ioss account.

The difference between the market value of the assets of the scheme and the present value of accrued pension liabilities is shown as an asset or liability
on the balance sheet net of deferred tax. Any difference between the expected return on assets and that actually achieved is recognised in the statement
of total recognised gains and losses along with differences which arise from expetience or assumption changes.

Further informatien on pension arrangements is set out in Note 12.
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Share-based payments
Following the 100% acquisition of BAA Limited by the Ferrovial Consortium in June 2006, all share awards were exercised.

The Company had a number of employee share schemes defailed in the Note 32 of the Group financia! statements. The equity-settled share-based
payments under these schemes, were measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date was expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

For the Executive Share Option Scheme ('ESOS’) and the Sharesave Scheme, the fair value of awards was measured using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The fair value of awards made under the Performance Share Plan ('FSP') was based on the market value of shares at the date of grant
adjusted o reflect a Total Shareholder Return market-based performance condition. The fair value of awards made under the Deferred Annual Bonus
Scheme ('DAB’) was based on the markef value of the shares at the date of grant.

No expense was recognised (any previously recognised expense was reversed) for awards that do not uitimately vest except where vesting is conditional
upon a measure linked to BAA pic’s share price (‘a market condition’) or other market conditions. The likelinood of achieving the market condition is taken
inte account in the fair value and, therefore, the award was treated as vesting imespective of whether or not the market condition was satisfied, provided
that any other perfarmance condition was met.

Where an award was cancelled, it was treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award was
recognised immediately in the profit ad loss account.

Dividend distribution
A dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liabiiity in the financial statements in the period in which the shareholders' right
to receive payment of the dividend is established by approval of the dividend at the Annual General Meeting. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

lnpairment of assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Where the assel does not
generate cash flows that are independent of other assets, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs is estimated.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Where the camying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverabie amount, the asset is consitlered impaired and is written down (o ifs recoverable amount. In assessing vaiue in use, the estimated fufure cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as lo whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recaoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment lass is reversed only i there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depregiation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount less any residual value, on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful life.

Financial instruments

Trade and other receivables

Trade and aother receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Investments

Cn initial recognifion, financial assets are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
aftributable transaction costs. Afler initial recognition, investments that are classified as ‘held-for-trading’ and ‘available-for-sale’ are measured at fair
value, Fair value gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised in the profit and loss account. Fair value gains or losses on available-for-
sale investments are recognised in a separate component of equity until the investment is sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the investment
is determinad to be impaired, at which ftime the cumulative fair value gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the profit and loss account.

Assets classified as ‘held-to-maturity’ or loans and receivables’ are recognised on the balance sheet at their amoriised cost, using the effective interest
rate method, less any provision far impairment.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables' and
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Nonr-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Company’'s management has the positive intent and ability to hold-to-maturity are classified as ‘neld-to-maturity’ and are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the
investments are de-recognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

For invesiments that are traded in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the reporting date. For
investments where there is no quoted market price, fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, such as estimaied discounted cash flows, or
by reference to the current market value of simifar investments.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date being the date on which the Company commits {o purchase or seil the asset.

Financiaf liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting ali of its liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of ransaction cosls incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless part of a
fair value hedge relationship. Any difference between the amount initially recognised (net of transaction costs) and the redemplion value is recognised in
the profit and foss account over the period of the horrowings using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are regarded as compound instruments, consisting of a liability component and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the liability component is determinad using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a
liahility on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the honds. The remainder of the proceeds are allocated to the
conversion option and recognised in shareholdets’ equity, net of income tax,

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the par value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Where shares are issued above
par value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial instruments (cther than derivatives) comprise hank loans, lisied bonds, listed convertible bonds, cash, shori-term
deposits and commercial paper. The main purpose of these instrumenits is to raise finance for the Group's operations.

The Company also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward cutrency contracts. The purpose
of these derivatives is to manage the interest rate and cutrency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The Company does not use financial instruments for speculative purposes. The treasury function operates on a centralised non-speculative risk basis. Its
purpese is to identify, mitigate and hedge residual treasury-related financial risks inherent to the Group's business operations, in accordance with Group
treasury policies.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are market risk {fair value interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate re-
pricing risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow inferest rate risk. The Board approves, annually, prudent treasury policies for managing each of the
risks summarised below.

Market risk

The Groun operates internationally and its balance sheet is exposed to foreign currency risk arising primarily with respect to the Ausiralian Dollar, the
Hungarian Forint and the Euro. The Company's policy is to seek to mitigate the effects of material structural currency exposures by matching overseas
investments and forecasted cash flows with borrowings denominated in the same currency where freely avaifable.

For debt raised in foreign currency, the Company uses cross currency swaps to hedge the related interest and principal payments. In cases where debt is
raised in foreign currency, 100% of the exposure is hedged in this way, subject to a deminimus limit.

Credit risk

The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Exposure to credit related losses, in the event of nen-performance by counterparties to
financial instruments, is mitigated by imiting exposure to any one parly or instrument and ensuring only counterparties within defined credit risk
parameters are used.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to ensure continuity of funding and flexibifity, ensuring debt maturities are spread over a range of dates, thereby ensuring that
the Company is not exposed to excessive refinancing risk in any one year. The Company's policy is to ensure there are sufficient forecasted cash
balances and undrawn committed facilities to fund the Group's forecast capital expenditure requirements for 18 months or 12 months forecast net funding
requirement, whichever is greater.

Price risk
The Company does not have significant exposure to equity security price risk or commodity price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company's interest rate risk arises from its short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable interest rates expose the Company to
cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. The Company's policy is to maintain a
mix of fixed to floating rate debt within Board approved parameters such that a minimum of 70% of existing and forecast debt is at a fixed rate. To
manage this mix, the Company enters into fixed-to-fioating interest rate swaps. These swaps are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. The
Company also uses floating rate interest bearing financial assets as a natural hedge of the exposure to fair value interest rate risk.

The Company undertakes forward starting interest rate swaps to minimise exposure to cash flow interest rate risk for future forecast issuance of debt.

Accounting for derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign currency contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps to hedge risks
associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative instruments are recognised on the balance sheet at fair value. The method
of recognising any resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the risk being
hedged.

Hedges are classified as:

= Fair value hedges, which hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability

= Cash flow hedges, which hedge the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset, liability or forecasted transaction.

Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges, are recorded in the profit and loss account, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivaiives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the profit
and foss account in the same period that the hedged item is recognised in the profit and foss account. However, where the forecast fransaction that is
hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for examgple, property, plant and eguipment) or liability, the gains and losses previously deferred
in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the asset or liability.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Company result for the year

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1885, the profit and loss account of the Company is not presented as part of these financial
statements. The loss of the Company for the year attributable to shareholders was £343 million (31 March 2006: £1,322 miltion profit).

2 Tangible assets
Asgets in the
Plant and course of
equipment construction Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Balance 1 April 2006 26 1 27
Additions 3 2 5
Disposals (5 - (5}
Balance 31 December 2006 24 3 27
Depreciation
Batance 1 April 2006 {18) - {18)
Charge (3) - (3)
Disposals 5 - 5
Balance 31 December 2006 (16} - {16)
Net book value 31 December 2006 8 3 11
Net book value 31 March 2006 8 1 9
3 Investments
Subsidiaries Joint venlures Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Balance 1 April 2006 7,786 2 7,788
Decrease in laans to subsidiary undertakings (301) - {301)
Balance 31 December 2006 7,485 2 7,487
Revaluation
Balance 1 April 2006 3,100 - 3,100
Revaluation surplus arising during the year 653 - 653
Balance 31 December 2006 3,753 - 3,753
Net book value 31 December 2006 11,238 2 11,240
Net book value 31 March 2006 10,886 2 10,888

Details of principal subsidiary undertakings are provided in Note 35 of the Group financial statements.

The investment in subsidiary undertakings {including interest free loans with no fixed repayment date) is stated at net asset value as determined for the
Group under IFRSs. Comparative figures have been restated.

4 Available-for-sale investments

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m
Unlisted securities
Balance 1 April 68 66
Revaluation surplus transferred to eguity 4 2
Balance 72 68

Available for sale investments represent £72 million in National Air Traffic Services Group {('NATS’), the UK's national air traffic services provider. The
investment in NATS represents a 4.19% equity interest, £24 million pricrity loan notes repayable in 2032, yielding a fixed interest rate of 8.5%, and £33
milfion undated foan notes yielding a fixed interest raie of 11.68%. The Company does not exercise significant long-term influence over NATS and
accordingly the investment has been classified as an available-for-sale investment.

The £33 million undated loan notes are valued as perpetual debt. The £24 million priority loan notes are valued by discounting the interest and principal
cashflows. The equity investment is valued by discounting the forecast dividend stream and discounting an assigned terminatl value to the equity in 2032.
A rate of 10.5% 31 March 2006: 10.5%) has been used as the discount factor.
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5 Trade and other receivables

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m

Due within one year
Trade debtors - 3
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 6,219 6,114
Corporation tax 31 12
Other debtors 137 19
6,387 6,148

Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 day terms.

Due after more than one year

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 659 420
Deferred tax asset’ 20 50
879 479

7,066 6,627

* Provision has been made for deferred tax in accordance with FRS 18. The amounts provided in the accounts are detafled below:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m

Amounts provided:
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation (12) (14}
Share based payments - (22)
Financial instruments 8) (22}
Other short-term differences 1 (1)
(20 (59}

6 Held-to-maturity financial assets

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m
. 442

Commercia) paper

No Commercial paper was held at 31 December 2006 (31 March 2006: £412m with an average maturity of two months earning interest at an average rate
of 4.55%).

7 Cash and short-term deposits

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 54 136
Short-term deposits - 308
54 444

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates and is subject to interest rate risk.

Short-term depasits held at 31 December 2008 totalled £nil (31 March 2006: £308 million had an average term-to-maturity of two months and had an
effective interest rate of 4.49%),
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8 Trade and aother payables

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m
Due withitt one year
Unsecured creditors
Trade creditors 54 61
Amounts owed to subsidiary undettakings 5,503 6,047
Other tax and social security g 12
Other creditors 15 52
Capital creditors 2 .
Dividends payable 5 -
Interest creditor 131 60
5,719 6,232
Due after more than one year
Other creditors 2 2

9 Borrowings

Effective 31 December 2006 31 March 2006
interest rate £m £m
Due within one year
Unsecured
BAA Limited bonds:
7.875% £200 milion due 2007 8.04% 200 200
Bank Loans Various 234 82
Total current 434 282
Non-current
Unsecured
BAA Limited bonds:
3.875% €1,000 million due 2012 4.01% 670 €693
5.750% £400 million due 2013 5.98% 397 397
4.500% €750 million due 2014 4.51% 508 525
11.750% £300 million due 2016 11.16% 310 311
4.500% €750 milion due 2018 4.93% 501 519
8.500% £250 million due 2021 8.64% 247 247
5.125% £750 million due 2023 5.67% 738 738
6.375% £200 million due 2028 6.50% 197 197
5.750% £900 miliion due 2031 5.82% 898 903
Bank loans Various 410 434
4,876 4,964
Borrowings from parent
Unsecured
BAA Limited converiible honds:
2.940% £424 million due 2008 6.42% 424 424
2.625% £425 million due 2009 5.43% M7 409
841 833
Total nhon-current 5,717 5,797
Total current and non-current 6,151 6,079

The fixed rate loans are subject to fair value interest rate risk and the floating rate loans are subject to cash flow interest rate risk.

BAA Limited honds and convertibie debt are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

Further details of the unsecured BAA Limited bonds and convertible bonds are provided in Note 17 of the Group financial statements.

Borrowings are repayable as follows:

31 Dacember 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m

Between one and two years 466 7
Between two and five years 534 845
After five years 4,717 4,530
5,117 5,382

In one year or less on demand 434 697
6,151 6,079
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Borrowing facilities
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities (to which the Company 1s an obligor) available at 31 December in respect of which all

conditions precedent had been met at that date;

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£m £m

Floating rate facilities
Expiring within one year - 50
Expiring between one and two years - 950
Expiring in more than fwo years 2,050 -
2,050 1,000

The £1 billion revolving credit facility was canceflied on 21 August 2006. BAA Limited is a joint obifigor with its 100% parent ADIL to a £2.25 biffion facility
maturing in April 2011. As at 31 December 2006, £200 million had been drawn on the facility.

In addition, as at 31 December 2006, overdraft facilities of £25 million (31 March 2006: £25 million) were available to the Company.

10 Derivative financial instruments

The Company’s derivative financial instruments are consolidated with those of the Group and are incorporated in the disclosure in Note 18 of the Group
financial stalements.

11 Other provisions

Reorganisation

£m

Balance 1 April 2006 3

Utilised (3)

Charged o profit and loss account 3

Balance 31 December 2006 3
Classified as:

Provisions for liabilities and charges 3

Reorganisation costs recognised during the year relate to a Group-wide programme to improve customer service and operational efficiency. Further
details on this programme can be found in Note 4 of the Group financial statements.

12 Retirement benefit obligations
The tofal pension cost included within operating costs is derived as follows:

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

BAA Pension Scheme 87 78
Adgditional provision for unfunded pensions {5} 2
Total operating charge to staff costs 82 81

Analysis of pension and other post retirament liabilities (net of deferred tax):

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£m £m

BAA Pension Scheme {145} (87)
QOther pension and post retirement schemes {15} (N
(160) {(104)

{a) BAA Pension Scheme
The Company operates one main pension scheme for its UK employees, the BAA Pension Scheme, which is a funded defined benefit scheme with both
open and closed sections. The scheme's assets are held separately from the assets of the Company and are administered by trustees.

The values placed on the liabilities of the scheme as at 31 December 2006 and 31 March 2006 are based on the results of the actuarial valuation
undertaken at 30 September 2004. The liabilities have been updated by Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited, o take account of changes in
economic assumptions, in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 17 ‘Relirement Benefits’. The Scheme assets are stated at their mid-market

value at 31 December 2006 and 31 March 2006.
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The financial assumptions used to calculaie Scheme assets and liabilities under FRS 17 are:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

% %

Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 4.6 4.4

increase to deferred benefits during deferment 31 29
increase to pensions in payment:

Open section 3.0 28

Closed section 31 2.9

Discount rate 5.2 5.0

Inflation assumption 341 2.9

The assumptions relating to longevity undertying the pensions liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on standard actuarial mortality tables, and
inctude an allowance for future improvements in longevity. The assumplions are equivalent to a life expectancy for a 60-year old male pensioner of 24.8
years and 25.9 years from age 60 for a 40 year old male pensioner. The assumptions differ from {hose used at 31 March 2006 when the refevant figures

were 22.7 and 24.8 respectively.

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit

9 months to 12 months to

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m

Current service cost 68 73
Fast service costs 2 3
Total operating charge pre-exceptional items 70 76
Exceptional past service cost 17 3
87 79

Total operating charge

Analysis of the amounts recognised in other finance income:

31 Decemnber 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m
{nterest on pension scheme liabilities {83} {101)
Expected return on pension scheme assets 99 115
Net return 16 14

Analysis of the amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses:

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m
Actual retum less expected return on plan assels (57) 273
Experience gains and losses arising on the benefil obligation {8} 14
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
benefit obligation T (218)
Actuarial {loss)/gain recognised in the statement of
recognised income and expense {58) 71

Expected rates of return on assets were:

31 December 2006
%

31 March 2006
%

31 March 2005
%

31 March 2004
%

Equities 8.0 7.2 77 7.7
Bonds 4.6 4.5 4.9 5.0
Other 5.0 4.6 4.7 4.0

Assets in the scheme were;

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

31 March 2005

31 March 2004

£m £m £m £m
Market value of assels
Equities 1,514 1,484 1,157 1,056
Bonds 573 569 502 453
Other 38 19 16 11
Total market value of scheme assets 2,125 2,072 1,675 1,526
Present value of scheme liabilities (2,332) (2,196) (1,850) {1,666)
Deficit in the scheme (207) {124) (175) (140)
Related deferred tax asset 62 37 52 42
Liability recognised in the balance shest (145) 87) _(123) (98}
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Analysis of movement in deficit during the year:

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

£m £m |
Deficit in scheme at 1 April {124} {175) |
Movement in the year: |
Current service cost {68) {73)
Past service cost (19} (6) |
COther finance income 16 14
Actuarial {loss)/gain {58) 71
Contributions 46 45
Deficit in scheme at end of period (207) (124)

History of experience gains and losses:
31 December 2006

31 March 2006

31 March 2005

31 March 2004

Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets:

Amount £m {58) 273 43 218
Percentage of scheme assets (2.7 13.2 26 14.4
Experience gains and losses on benefits obligations:
Amount £m (8) 14 19 32
Percentage of scheme liabililies (0.3) 0.6 1.0 1.9
Amount recognised in the statement of recognised
gains and losses:
Amount £m {58) 71 {9) 188
Percentage of benefit obligation (2.5) 3.2 {0.5) 11.3

(b) Other pension and post-retirement liabilities

The Company provides unfunded pensions in respect of directors and senior employees whose benefits are restricted by the BAA Pension Scheme rules.
The impact of these arrangements in the accounts is as follows:

9 months to 12 months to
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£mn £m
Amount charged to operating profit (6) 3
Amount set off against other finance income 1 1
Amount recognised in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses 2 1

The Company provides post-retirement medical benefits to certain pensioners. Total premium paid during the vear in respect of these benefits was
£315,639 (31 March 2006: £307,340). The present value of the future liabilities under this arrangement have been assessed by the actuary and is
inciuded in the balance sheet, along with provision for unfunded pension obfigations, net of deferred tax, under pension and post-retirement liabilities as

follows:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006

£m £m
Unfunded pension obligations {12) (14)
Post-retirement medical benefits (3} (3)
Deficit in scheme at end of period (15} {17)

The value of unfunded pensions has been assessed by the actuary using the same assumptions as those to calculate the pension scheme liabilities
except that salary increases have been assumed to be 5.6% per annum {31 March 2006: 5.4%]).
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13 Share capital
£
Authotised
1,300,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 1,300,000,000
Balance at 1 April 2006 and 31 December 2006 1,300,000,000
|
Allotted and fully paid
Inissue at 1 April 2006; 1,080,361,331 ordinary shares of £1 each 1,080,361,331
Issue of ordinary shares of £1 each under the share and share
aption schemes and plans 22,038,984
In issue at 31 December 2006: 1,102,400,215 ordinary shares 1,102,400,315
of £1 each

14 Share premium

£m

Balance 1 April 2006 245
Premium on shares issued 80
Balance 31 December 2006 325

15 Own shares held

£m

Bafance 1 April 2006 (4)
4

Disposals {exercised options)
Balance 31 December 2006 -

The BAA Employee Share Trust ('the BEST') was established to enable the Company to co-ordinate and manage the funding and delivery of shares to
employees who exercised oplions or received shares under its employee share schemes.

The BEST was a discretionary trust established for the benefit of all employees. The Trustee of the BEST was an independent trust company based in
Jersey. Historicafly, the Trustee purchased the Company's ordinary shares in the open market with financing provided by the Company, as required, on
the basis of regular reviews of the anlicipated share liabilities of the Group.

Singe the 100% acquisition of BAA by the Ferrovial Consortium in June 2006, no company owned shares have been held.

16 Revaluation reserve

£m
Balance 1 April 2006 2,722
Revaluation of investments 853
Balance 1 April 2006 and 31 December 2006 3,375
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17 Fair value and other reserves

Equity Fair Available for Capital
option value sale Redemption
Reserve Reserve Investments Reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 April 2005 65 3 (1) 27 94
Cash flow hedges:
Fair value (losses)gains - (2} 2 - -
Transferred to profit and loss account - (33) - - (33)
Deferred tax on fair value losses ~ 7 - - 7
Current tax on fair value losses/{gains) - 3 {1 - 2
Balance at 1 April 2006 65 (22) - 27 70
Cash fiow hedges:
Fair value {lossesygains - (30} 4 - {26)
Transferred to profit and loss account - 58 - - 58
Deferred tax on fair vaiue gains - (6) - - {6)
Current tax on fair value losses/gains - {2} {1 - 3
Balance at 31 December 2006 65 {2) 3 27 93
18 Profit and loss account
£m
Balance at 1 April 2006 1,879
Retained loss for the financial year (343}
Actuarial gain on pensions net of deferred tax (40)
Share-based payments charge 5
Other movements {45}
Balance at 31 December 2006 1,456

19 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Non-cancellable operating fease commitments — Company as a fessee

Total future minimum rentals payable as at the period end are as follows:

31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
£m £m £m £m
Within two to five years 1 1 1 1
After five years 1 - 1 -
2 1 2 1

The Company leases various offices and warchouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements, The leases have various terms, escalation
clauses and renewable rights. The Company also operates plant and machinery under non-canceilabie operating leases.

20 Contingent liabilities

The Company has contingent Jiabilities, comprising letters of credit, perfermance/surety bonds, performance guaraniees and other items arising in the
nommal course of business amounting to £192 million at 31 December 2006 (31 March 2008: £323 million). Included in the abave are the following:

{i} The Company has provided a limited guarantee to Indianapolis Airport Authority {'IAA"), supported by a US$50 million letter of credit, to guarantee its
obligations under the 13-year management contract with 1AA which expires on 31 December 2008.

(i) n July 1998, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Heathrow Airport Limited, entered into a ¢ross-border lease and leaseback in relation to
the Heathrow Express rolling stock owned by Heathrow Airport Limited. The Company and Heathrow Airport Limited guarantee payments that are
defeased by a deposit of US$59.4 million with Rabobank and US$15 million in US Government securities. In addition, they guarantee early
termination payments. The amount payable under this guarantee at 31 December 2006 was US$14.5 million.

{itiy The Company has provided pareni guaraniees in respect of €75 million as security for the development commitments of Budapest Airport Zrt and €10
million as a performance guarantee related o a potential acquisition that did not proceed. This latter guarantee has been cancelled since 10 January

2007.

{iv) Holders of US$109 miliion of bonds of World Duty Free Americas, Inc. (now known as DFA Inc.), sold in October 2001, issued progceedings against
BAA Limited (formerly BAA pic}, World Duty Free plc and the purchaser of DFA Inc. in May 2002 claiming the defendants had fraudulently conveyed
the assets of DFA Inc. The plainiiffs’ remaining claim is for US$39 million and punitive damages of the same amount. A trial in December 2003
found BAA Limited and World Duty Free plc not liable to the bond holders on all counts. The WDFA bondholders appeal on two points of law was
heard in November 2004 and reheard in October 2005. The Court hearing the appeal found for the plaintiffs on bath points of taw and ordered the
case to be sent back to the Court of First Instance. BAA Limited appealed to the Court of Appeal which is the supreme court for the State of
Maryland and a hearing took place in October 2008. The decision is still awaited. The board remains confident of a successful cutcome,
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{v) Pursuant 1o the terms of the ADIL Senicr Finance Documents and the ADIL Junior Finance Documents, BAA Limited, as an obligor, jointly and
severally guarantees the Seniar and Subordinated facilities with all other obligors up to & maximum value that shafl be no greater than the aggregate
amount such as would not cause the financial and other covenants contained in the Existing Bonds to be breached. The fair value of the guarantee
provided by BAA Limited as of 31 December 2006 is not material.

The other obligors are BAA Partnership Limited, BAA {Intemational Holdings) Limited, London Airports Limited, Gatwick Airport Limited, Heathrow
Airport Limited, Stansted Airport Limited, London Airports 1992 Limited, London Airports 1993 Limited, Scottish Airports Limited, World Duty Free
Limited and World Duty Free {Europe) Limited,

21 Share based payments

The Company recognised a total expense, within staff costs, in relation to share-based payments of £5 miliion (31 March 2006: £13 million).
Following the 100% acquisition of BAA by the Ferrovial Consortium in June 2006, all share awards were exercised.

Details of the following schemes in operation during the period, including the pricing models used in determining fair vatues and movements in awards are
provided in Note 32 of the Group financial stalements:

+ Petformance Share Plan

»  Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme

+ Sharesave Scheme

» Executive Share Option Scheme

22 Dividends paid and proposed
Details of dividends paid for the period are provided in Note 7 of the Group financial statements.

23 Auditors’ remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration pald to PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP for the perfarmance of the stalutory audit amounted to £0.2 milliont {31 March 2006: £0.2
million).

Details of fees for other services are provided in Note 2 of the Group financial statements.

24 Directors’ remuneration

Details of directors’ remuneration for the year are provided in Note 3 of the Group financial statements.

25 Employees and directors
The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) of the Company was 9,884 (31 March 2006: 9,595},

Of the above employees, 9,701 (31 March 2006: 9,373) are wholly employed in providing services to subsidiary undertakings of the Group and their
wages and salaries and other refated costs of employment are charged to those subsidiaries.
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Registered office

BAA Limited, Belgrave House, 76 Buckingham Palace Road, London SW1W 0TQ
Registered in England No. 1970855
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